
Meeting of:  Audit and Governance Committee
Date: Monday 23rd April 2018
Time: 6.15 pm.
Venue: Rochdale Town Hall, The Esplanade, 

Rochdale, OL16 1AB

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

3.  URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

4.  ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting. 

5.  MINUTES 3 - 5

To consider the minutes of meeting held on Monday, 18 December 
2017 of the Audit and Governance Committee. 

6.  EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN - YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2018 6 - 22

To consider the External Audit Plan for the Year Ending 31 March 
2018. 

Public Document Pack



7.  AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT AND SECTOR UPDATE - YEAR 
ENDING 31 MARCH 2018 

23 - 41

To consider the Audit Progress Report and Sector Update for the Year 
Ending 31 March 2018. 

8.  INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2018/19 42 - 70

To approve the Internal Audit Plan 2018/19. 

9.  INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTER 3 REPORT 2017/18 71 - 88

To review Internal Audit activity in quarter 3 2017/18. 

10.  RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRESS REPORT - Q3 2017/18 89 - 100

To review Risk Management activity in quarter 3 2017/18. 

11.  REVIEW OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT ETHICAL STANDARDS: 
STAKEHOLDER CONSULTATION 

101 - 107

To consider responding to the Local Government Ethical Standards: 
Stakeholder Consultation. 

Audit and Governance Committee Members
Councillor Andy Bell Councillor Jacqueline Beswick
Councillor Lynne Brosnan Councillor Neil Butterworth
Councillor Irene Davidson Councillor James Gartside
Councillor Peter Joinson Councillor Peter Malcolm
Councillor Liam O'Rourke Councillor Aasim Rashid
Ann Taylor Andrew Underdown

For more information about this meeting, please contact :-

Michael Garraway – Governance and Committee Services
Email: michael.garraway@rochdale.gov.uk 
Telephone: 01706 924716

mailto:michael.garraway@rochdale.gov.uk


AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Monday, 18 December 2017

PRESENT:    Councillor Malcolm (in the Chair), Councillors Bell, Butterworth, 
Davidson, Gartside, Joinson.

OFFICERS:   D. Wilcock (Assistant Director Legal, Governance, Workforce), Victoria 
Bradshaw (Chief Finance Officer), M. Widdup (Director of Neighbourhoods), I. 
Corbridge (Head of Internal Audit), J. Edwards (Senior Accountant), M. Nixon (Risk 
Manager) and M. Garraway (Governance & Committees Officer).    

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:   A. Taylor and A. Underdown (Independent Persons), M. 
Dixon, G. Mills and D. Watson (Grant Thornton), Councillors P. Williams, J. Beswick 
and A. McCarthy.  

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Rashid

AMENDMENT TO ORDER OF BUSINESS
23 The Chair advised of a change to the order of business on the published 
agenda with item 13 – Legal update to be considered prior to item 12 – Code of 
Conduct update.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
24 Councillor Malcolm declared a personal and prejudicial interest in agenda 
item 12 – Code of Conduct update and left the room during consideration of this item.

Councillor Joinson declared a personal and prejudicial interest in agenda item 13 – 
Legal update and left the room during consideration of this item.

MINUTES
25 Decision: That the minutes of the Audit & Governance Committee held on 
18th September 2017 be approved as a correct record.  

INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTER 2 REPORT 2017/18
26 The Head of Internal Audit reported to the Committee summarising the work 
of the Internal Audit Team during the second quarter period of 2017/18.  

Further to the previous meeting of the Committee held on 18th September 2017 the 
Director of Neighbourhoods addressed the Committee in relation to the delayed 
implementation of recommendations identified in relation to affordable housing.

Decision: 
(1) That the report be noted;
(2) The Director of Neighbourhoods report to a meeting of the Committee before the 

end of this Municipal Year detailing how each of the outstanding actions had 
been implemented in relation to affordable housing. 

Reason for decision:
So that the Committee can be satisfied that appropriate checks and balances are in 
place to ensure that the affordable house project is compliant with financial and 
contractual codes of conduct, and the recommendations of Internal Audit are being 
implemented as requested.

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



GRANT THORNTON ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER FOR ROCHDALE BOROUGH 
COUNCIL
27 The Committee considered the Annual Audit Letter from Grant Thornton 
summarising the key findings arising from work undertaken at the Council to the year 
ending March 2017.

The Letter was intended to provide a commentary on the results of the external 
auditors work, and to highlight issues that they wished to draw to the attention of the 
public. The letter was prepared in accordance with the National Audit Office Code of 
Audit Practice and Auditor Guidance Note (AGN) 07 – 'Auditor Reporting'.

The Committee noted the comments contained in the letter regarding the 
commitment shown by all the officers involved in supporting the improvements in the 
efficiency of the accounts and audit process.

Decision: 
That the Annual Audit Letter for the Council be noted.

Reason for decision:
The function of reviewing the external auditor’s annual letter is undertaken by the 
Audit & Governance Committee. 

GRANT THORNTON - GRANTS LETTER 2016/17
28 The Committee considered the 2016/17 Grants Letter submitted by Grant 
Thornton which certified the Housing Benefit subsidy claim submitted by the Council 
for the year ending March 2017.

Decision: 
That the submitted Housing Benefits certification letter be noted.

Reason for decision:
The function of reviewing the external auditor’s Housing Benefits certification letter is 
undertaken by the Audit & Governance Committee.

PEER REVIEW OF INTERNAL AUDIT
29 The Head of Internal Audit introduced a report which presented the findings of 
a review of the Council’s Internal Audit function undertaken by representatives from 
the North West Chief Audit Executive Group. The review confirmed that the Council’s 
Internal Audit conforms to the requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS). 

A Member of the Committee requested if a peer review of the Council’s Risk 
Management and Insurance functions could be undertaken.

Decision:
(1) That the peer review be noted;
(2) The Head of Internal Audit explore options through the North West Chief Audit 
Executive Group for a peer review of the Council’s Risk Management and Insurance 
functions to be undertaken on a 3 yearly cycle.

Reason for decision:
A requirement of the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme as set out 
within the PSIAS is for an external assessment of internal Audit to be undertaken 
every five years.  

Page 4



RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRESS REPORT - Q2 2017/18
30 The Committee considered the report of the Director of Resources providing a 
summary of the Risk Management and Insurance Teams work during the second 
Quarter of 2017/18.  

Decision:
That the report be noted.

Reason for decision:
It is a function of the Audit & Governance Committee to review to work of the Risk 
Management and Insurance Teams.

LEGAL UPDATE
31 The Chair invited Councillor Joinson to address the Committee in relation to 
the item prior to the exclusion of the press and public and his leaving the room 
having declared a personal and prejudicial interest. 

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
32 Decision:
That the Press and Public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the 
following items of business, in accordance with the provisions of Section 100A (4) of 
the Local Government Act 1972, as amended.

Reason for Decision:
Should the press and public remain during debate on these items there may be a 
disclosure of information that is deemed to be exempt under Parts 1 and 4 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

LEGAL UPDATE
33 The Assistant Director (Legal, Governance, Workforce) introduced a report 
setting out the approach within Rochdale Council to child protection.  Members of the 
Committee had requested a report at the meeting held on 18th September 2017.

Decision:
That the report be noted.

Reason for decision:
To gain an understanding of steps taken to manage potential risks within the multi-
agency approach.

CODE OF CONDUCT UPDATE
34 The Assistant Director (Legal, Governance, Workforce) introduced a report 
updating the Committee on complaints made pursuant to the Members Code of 
Conduct.

Decision:
That the report be noted.

Reason for decision:
It is a function of the Audit & Governance Committee to review matters relating to the 
Code of Conduct.

Note:
Councillor Butterworth was appointed to Chair this item.

Page 5



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2017/18

External Audit Plan
Year ending 31 March 2018

Rochdale Borough Council

10 April 2018

P
age 6

A
genda Item

 6



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2017/18 2

Contents

Section Page

1. Introduction & headlines 3

2. Deep business understanding 4

3. Significant risks identified 5

4. Reasonably possible risks identified 7

5. Other matters 8

6. Materiality 9

7. Value for Money arrangements 10

8. Results of interim audit work 11

9. Audit logistics, team & audit fees 13

10. Early close 14

11. Independence & non-audit services 15

Appendices

A. Revised ISAs 16

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit planning process. It is not a

comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and in particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect the

Council or any weaknesses in your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent.

We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for,

nor intended for, any other purpose.

Your key Grant Thornton 

team members are:

Gareth Mills

Engagement Lead

T:  0113 200 2535

E:gareth.mills@uk.gt.com

Marianne Dixon

Engagement Manager

T: 0113 200 2699

E: marianne.dixon@uk.gt.com

Rebecca Williams

Engagement In-Charge

T: 0113 200 1686

E: rebecca.m.williams@uk.gt.com

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members 

is available from our registered office.  Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant 

Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents 

of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

P
age 7



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2017/18 3

Introduction & headlines
Purpose

This document provides an overview of the planned scope and timing of the statutory

audit of Rochdale Borough Council (‘the Council’) for those charged with governance.

Respective responsibilities

The National Audit Office (‘the NAO’) has issued a document entitled Code of Audit

Practice (‘the Code’). This summarises where the responsibilities of auditors begin and

end and what is expected from the audited body. Our respective responsibilities are

also set in the Terms of Appointment and Statement of Responsibilities issued by

Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA), the body responsible for appointing us as

auditor of Rochdale Borough Council]. We draw your attention to both of these

documents on the PSAA website.

Scope of our audit

The scope of our audit is set in accordance with the Code and International Standards on

Auditing (ISAs) (UK). We are responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the:

• financial statements (including the Annual Governance Statement) that have been

prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance (the

Audit and Governance Committee); and

• Value for Money arrangements in place at the Council for securing economy, efficiency

and effectiveness in your use of resources.

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or the Audit and

Governance Committee of your responsibilities. It is the responsibility of the Council to

ensure that proper arrangements are in place for the conduct of its business, and that

public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for. We have considered how the

Council is fulfilling these responsibilities.

Our audit approach is based on a thorough understanding of the Council's business and is

risk based.

Significant risks Those risks requiring specific audit consideration and procedures to address the likelihood of a material financial statement error have been identified 

as:

• The presumed risk of management over-ride of controls – Under ISA 240 there is an un-rebuttable presumed risk that the risk of management over-

ride of controls is present in all entities.

• Valuation of land and buildings – the Council re-values its land and building on a rolling basis over a four year period. The Code requires the 

Council to ensure that the carrying value at the balance sheet date is not materially different from the current value. This represents a significant 

estimate by management in the financial statements. 

• Valuation of pension fund net liability – the Council's pension fund net liability, as reflected in its balance sheet, represents a significant estimate in 

the financial statements.

We will communicate significant findings on these areas as well as any other significant matters arising from the audit to you in our Audit Findings (ISA 

260) Report.

Materiality We have determined planning materiality to be £10.7m (PY £11m), which equates to 2% of your of gross expenditure in the 2016/17 audited accounts. 

We are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance. Clearly 

trivial has been set at £536k (PY £553k). 

Value for Money 

arrangements

Our risk assessment regarding your arrangements to secure value for money has identified the following VFM significant risks:

• Integration of Health and Social Care, including the development of the Local Care Organisation

• Locality budget pressures and the future financial resilience of the Council

Audit logistics Our interim visits took place in February and March/April. Our final audit visit will take place in June and July.  Our key deliverables are this Audit Plan 

and our Audit Findings (ISA260) Report. Our fee for the audit will be £136,373 (PY: £136,373).

Independence We have complied with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are 

independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements.

P
age 8

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/terms-of-appointment/


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2017/18 4

Deep business understanding

• We will consider your arrangements for managing and reporting your financial resources, including your progress on the further integration of health and social care, and responding 

to the financial pressures identified in the Locality Financial Plan as part of our work in reaching our Value for Money conclusion.

• We will consider whether your financial position leads to uncertainty about the going concern assumption and will review any related disclosures in the financial statements. 

• We will keep you informed of changes to the Regulations and any associated changes to financial reporting or public inspection requirements for 2017/18 through on-going 

discussions and invitations to our technical update workshops.

Changes to service delivery

Our response

Key challengesChanges to financial reporting requirements

Integration of Health and Social 

Care 

The Council  and CCG have 

been working together to 

develop integrated 

Commissioning over a number 

of years. This has now lead to 

increasingly integrated 

management structures and a 

Shadow Integrated 

Commissioning Board 

operating throughout 2017/18.

Further integration in 

Commissioning and the  

development of the Local Care 

Organisation for Health and 

Social Care provision continues 

to face challenges from the 

changing provider landscape in 

the Greater Manchester North 

East sector.

Devolution

The Cities and Local Government 

Devolution Act 2016 provides the 

legal framework for the 

implementation of devolution deals 

with combined authorities and other 

areas. 

The Council together with other 

Greater Manchester councils have a 

history of working together which 

helped to result in the 2014 

Devolution Agreement. The 

agreement led to the region gaining 

additional powers, and greater 

accountability through an elected 

mayor.

The region has built upon this 

innovative agreement, culminating in 

a fourth devolution agreement 

agreed in the March 2016 Budget. 

Andy Burnham was elected as the 

Mayor of Greater Manchester in May 

2017.

RBC takes an active role with 

members and senior officer leading 

on Housing, Planning and 

Homelessness.

Accounts and Audit 

Regulations 2015 (the 

Regulations)

The Department of 

Communities and Local 

Government (DCLG) is 

currently undertaking a 

review of the 

Regulations, which may 

be subject to change. 

The date for any 

proposed changes has 

yet to be confirmed, so it 

is not yet clear or 

whether they will apply 

to the 2017/18 financial 

statements.

Under the current 2015 

Regulations local 

authorities are required 

to publish their accounts 

along with the auditors 

opinion by 31 July 2018.

Changes to the CIPFA 

2017/18 Accounting Code 

CIPFA have introduced only 

minor changes to the 2017-

18 Code, including 

confirmation of the going 

concern basis for local 

authorities.

As part of our 2017-18 audit 

planning to date, we have 

held regular liaison meetings 

with senior members of the 

finance team to discuss the 

key issues expected to 

impact on the 2017-18 

accounts and audit process.

These meetings will continue 

in the run up to the year-end 

and thereafter.  The 

meetings help to ensure that 

both Council and ourselves 

are discussing and seeking 

agreement on key 

accounting and governance 

matters in advance of the 

year-end audit, seeking to 

avoid unexpected late 

surprises in the audit 

process.

Financial pressures

The Council faces a funding gap 

of almost £38m in its 5 year 

Medium term Financial Strategy 

to 2022/23.

The Locality Funding Gap facing 

the Council and its NHS 

partners is £35.7m to 2020/21 

The successful delivery of a 

sustainable financial position will 

depend on how the Council 

mitigates a number of risks and 

emerging pressures such as 

continued reduction in funding 

to local authorities, making a 

success of the powers given to 

the region through devolution, 

and the integration with health 

commissioners, including the  

development of the Local Care 

Organisation.

We will consider the Council’s 

arrangements for ensuring a 

sustainable financial position as 

part of our VFM conclusion 

work.

Earlier statutory deadline 

for the Council’s accounts

Bringing forward the 

statutory date for publication 

of audited local government 

accounts to 31 July this year, 

across the whole sector, is a 

significant challenge for local 

authorities and auditors alike. 

The Council  is already well 

placed to deal with the earlier 

timetable, with strong 

arrangements in place for 

accounts closedown, 

producing the accounts and 

working with us to ensure a 

smooth and efficient audit 

process takes place.

We have agreed our audit 

timetable with the senior 

members of the finance 

team.  Our target date if to 

sign off the accounts by 31 

July 2018 following the Audit 

and Governance Committee.

P
age 9



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2017/18 5

Significant risks identified

Significant risks are defined by professional standards as risks that, in the judgement of the auditor, require special audit consideration because they have a higher risk of material 

misstatement. Such risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. In identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, the potential 

magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood.

Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

The revenue cycle includes 

fraudulent transactions

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed risk that

revenue may be misstated due to the improper recognition of

revenue.

This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor concludes that 

there is no risk of material misstatement due to fraud relating to 

revenue recognition.

Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the revenue 

streams at the Council, we have determined that the risk of fraud arising from 

revenue recognition can be rebutted, because:

• there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition

• opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited

• the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including Rochdale 

Borough Council, mean that all forms of fraud are seen as unacceptable

Therefore we do not consider this to be a significant risk for the Council.

Management over-ride of 

controls
Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed risk that 

the risk of management over-ride of controls is present in all 

entities. 

The Council faces external scrutiny of its spending, and this 

could potentially place management under undue pressure in 

terms of how they report performance.

Management over-ride of controls is a risk requiring special audit 

consideration.

We will:

• gain an understanding of the accounting estimates, judgements applied and 

decisions made by management and consider their reasonableness 

• obtain a full listing of journal entries, identify and test unusual journal entries for 

appropriateness

• evaluate the rationale for any changes in accounting policies or significant 

unusual transactions.

P
age 10



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2017/18 6

Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Valuation of property, 

plant and equipment
The Code requires the Council to ensure that the carrying 

value at the balance sheet date is not materially different from 

the current value. 

The Council carries out a rolling programme of valuations that 

ensures that all Property, Plant and Equipment required to be 

measured at current value is revalued at least every four 

years. This represents a significant estimate by management 

in the financial statements.

We identified the valuation of land and buildings revaluations 

and impairments as a risk requiring special audit 

consideration.

.

We will:

 review management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate, 

the instructions issued to valuation experts and the scope of their work

 consider the competence, expertise and objectivity of any management experts used

 discuss with the valuer the basis on which the valuation is carried out and challenge the 

key assumptions

 review and challenge the information used by the valuer to ensure it is robust and 

consistent with our understanding.

 test revaluations made during the year to ensure they are input correctly into the 

Council's asset register

 evaluate the assumptions made by management for those assets not subject to formal 

valuation during the year to confirm the process is sufficiently robust to mitigate the risk 

the value of assets not revalued might by materially misstated (either at the level of 

individual assets or in aggregate). 

Valuation of pension 

fund net liability

The Council's pension fund asset and liability as reflected in 

its balance sheet represent  a significant estimate in the 

financial statements.

We identified the valuation of the pension fund net liability as 

a risk requiring special audit consideration.

We will:

 identify the controls put in place by management and the controls established by 

Greater Manchester Pension Fund to ensure that the pension fund liability is not 

materially misstated. We will assess whether these controls were implemented as 

expected and whether they are sufficient to mitigate the risk of material misstatement

 evaluate the competence, expertise and objectivity of the actuary who carried out your 

pension fund valuation. On behalf of external audit suppliers to local government, the 

National Audit Office has commissioned an auditor’s expert to undertake a review of the 

actuaries engaged by local government pension funds, including the Greater 

Manchester Pension Fund. We will consider the expert’s findings and follow-up on any 

implications for our audit

 undertake procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions 

made, particularly if these are specific to the Council

 check the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in notes to 

the financial statements with the actuarial report from your actuary.

Significant risks identified

P
age 11



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2017/18 7

Reasonably possible risks identified

Reasonably possible risks (RPRs) are, in the auditor's judgment, other risk areas which the auditor has identified as an area where the likelihood of material misstatement cannot be 

reduced to remote, without the need for gaining an understanding of the associated control environment, along with the performance of an appropriate level of substantive work. The risk 

of misstatement for an RPR is lower than that for a significant risk, and they are not considered to be areas that are highly judgmental, or unusual in relation to the day to day activities of 

the business.

Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Employee remuneration

(Completeness)

Payroll expenditure represents a significant percentage 

(40%) of the Council’s operating expenses. 

The Council’s iTrent payroll system interfaces with the 

Council’s main accounting system. Given the large number 

of transactions associated with the Council’s payroll there is 

a risk that payroll expenditure in the accounts could be 

understated. We therefore identified completeness of payroll 

expenses as a risk requiring particular audit attention

We will

• confirm our understanding of the Council's processes and the associated controls in

place to ensure that Council employees receive the correct pay each month and that the

amounts paid are completely and accurately recorded in the General Ledger and

reported as part of the financial statements

• evaluate the Council's accounting policy for recognition of payroll expenditure for

appropriateness

• reconcile total payroll costs from the payroll subsystem to the general ledger

• perform a monthly trend analysis to identify months with unusually high or low pay levels.

Operating expenses

(Completeness)

Non-pay expenses on other goods and services also 

represents a significant percentage (51%) of the Council’s 

operating expenses. 

The Council purchases goods and services from a range of 

suppliers. At the year-end management uses judgement to 

estimate the value of goods or services consumed which 

have not yet been paid for so that where an invoice has not 

been received appropriate accruals can be reflected in the 

Balance Sheet. 

This forms part of the closedown process for both capital and 

revenue transactions and the use of estimates is required to 

enable the Council to close its ledgers promptly. 

Given the use of estimation techniques, we identified 

completeness of non-pay expenditure as a risk requiring 

particular audit attention.

We will

• gain an understanding of the Council's process for initiating, processing, recording and

reporting accounts payable invoices and other types of non-pay expenditure incurred by

the Council

• test the year-end reconciliation of the accounts payable system to the general ledger

• assess the accruals process established by management and consider whether it is

sufficiently comprehensive to ensure year-end accruals are not materially misstated

• test a sample of year end accruals and creditor balances in the year-end balance sheet

to confirm these accurately reflect year-end liabilities

• test a sample of payments made in April 2018 to confirm the associated invoices have

been accounted for in the correct financial year.

P
age 12



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2017/18 8

Other matters

Other work

In addition to our responsibilities under the Code of Practice, we have a number of other

audit responsibilities, as follows:

• We carry out work to satisfy ourselves that disclosures made in your Annual 

Governance Statement are in line with the guidance issued and consistent with our 

knowledge of the Council.

• We will read your Narrative Statement and check that it is consistent with the 

financial statements on which we give an opinion and that the disclosures included in 

it are in line with the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice.

• We carry out work on your consolidation schedules for the Whole of Government 

Accounts process in accordance with NAO group audit instructions.

• We consider our other duties under the Act and the Code, as and when required, 

including:

• giving electors the opportunity to raise questions about your 2017/18 

financial statements, consider and decide upon any objections received in 

relation to the 2017/18 financial statements; 

• issue of a report in the public interest; and 

• making a written recommendation to the Council, copied to the Secretary of 

State.

• We certify completion of our audit.

Other material balances and transactions

Under International Standards on Auditing, "irrespective of the assessed risks of material

misstatement, the auditor shall design and perform substantive procedures for each

material class of transactions, account balance and disclosure". All other material

balances and transaction streams will therefore be audited. However, the procedures will

not be as extensive as the procedures adopted for the risks identified in this report.

Going concern

As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the

appropriateness of management's use of the going concern assumption in the

preparation and presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is

a material uncertainty about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern” (ISA (UK)

570).

We will review management's assessment of the going concern assumption and evaluate

the disclosures in the financial statements. We will summarise our findings in the ISA260

Report, due to be presented to the Audit and Governance Committee in July 2018.

P
age 13



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2017/18 9

Materiality

The concept of materiality

The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements

and the audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but also to

disclosure requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and

applicable law. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if

they, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

Materiality for planning purposes

We propose to calculate financial statement materiality based on a proportion of the

gross expenditure of the Council for the financial year. We have determined planning

materiality (the financial statements materiality determined at the planning stage of the

audit) to be £10.7m (PY £11m), which equates to 2% of the gross expenditure reported

in your audited 2016/17 financial statements. We design our procedures to detect errors

in specific accounts at a lower level of precision.

We reconsider planning materiality if, during the course of our audit engagement, we

become aware of facts and circumstances that would have caused us to make a

different determination of planning materiality.

Matters we will report to the Audit and Governance Committee

Whilst our audit procedures are designed to identify misstatements which are material to

our opinion on the financial statements as a whole, we nevertheless report to the Audit

and Governance Committee any unadjusted misstatements of lesser amounts to the

extent that these are identified by our audit work. Under ISA 260 (UK) ‘Communication

with those charged with governance’, we are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or

misstatements other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with

governance. ISA 260 (UK) defines ‘clearly trivial’ as matters that are clearly

inconsequential, whether taken individually or in aggregate and whether judged by any

quantitative or qualitative criteria. In the context of the Council, we propose that an

individual difference could normally be considered to be clearly trivial if it is less than

£536k (PY £553k).

If management have corrected material misstatements identified during the course of

the audit, we will consider whether those corrections should be communicated to the

Audit and Governance Committee to assist it in fulfilling its governance responsibilities.

Gross expenditure

£536m

Materiality

Gross expenditure 2016/17

Materiality

£10.7m

Whole financial 

statements materiality

(PY: £11m)

£536k

Misstatements reported 

to the Audit and 

Governance Committee

(PY: £553k)

P
age 14



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2017/18 10

Value for Money arrangements

Background to our VFM approach

The NAO issued its guidance for auditors on Value for Money work for 2017/18 in

November 2017. The guidance states that for local government bodies, auditors are

required to give a conclusion on whether the Council has proper arrangements in place.

The guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate:

“In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys

resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.”

This is supported by three sub-criteria, as set out below:

Significant VFM risks

Those risks requiring specific audit consideration and procedures to address the likelihood 

that proper arrangements are not in place at the Council to deliver value for money.

Reporting

The results of our VfM audit work and the key messages arising will be reported in our 

Audit Findings Report, due to be presented to the Committee in July, and in the Annual 

Audit Letter later in 2018. 

Health & Social Care Integration

The Council and CCG are continuing to formalise their arrangements for

commissioning Health and Social Care, including the preparation of a shadow

budget for the Integrated Care Organisation.

This risk links to the Council’s arrangements for working effectively with

partners and other third parties to deliver strategic priorities, managing risks

effectively and maintaining a sound system of internal control.

We will continue to consider the increasingly formalised arrangements

between the Council and the CCG for Integrated Health and Social Care

Commissioning between the Council and the ongoing developments in

preparing for the establishment of the local Integrated Care Organisation.

Budget pressures and funding gap

The Council continues to face significant financial pressures with reduced

funding and increasing service demand pressures. The funding gap for the

five years 2018/19 to 2022/23 is reported in the latest MTFS as £38m.

Together with its NHS partners, the Council also faces a wider locality funding

gap of £35.7m to 2020-21.

This risk links to the Council’s arrangements for sustainable resource

deployment.

We will continue to consider the processes established by the Council to

identify, manage and monitor the savings proposals to address the budget

gap, including working with partners to address the locality funding gap.

Informed 

decision 

making

Sustainable 

resource 

deployment

Working 

with partners 

& other third 

parties

Value for 

Money 

arrangements 

criteria

P
age 15



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2017/18 11

Results of interim audit work

The findings of our interim audit work, and the impact of our findings on the accounts audit approach, are summarised in the table below:

Audit area Work performed Summary and conclusion

Internal audit We have completed a high level review of internal audit's overall arrangements. Overall, we have concluded that the internal audit service provides an 

independent and satisfactory service to the Council and that internal 

audit work contributes to an effective internal control environment.

Our review of internal audit work has not identified any issues that we 

wish to bring to your attention.

Entity level

controls

We have obtained an understanding of the overall control environment relevant to the 

preparation of the financial statements including:

• Communication and enforcement of integrity and ethical values

• Commitment to competence

• Participation by those charged with governance

• Management's philosophy and operating style

• Organisational structure

• Assignment of authority and responsibility

• Human resource policies and practices.

Our work has identified no material weaknesses which are likely to 

adversely impact on the Council's financial statements.

Walk through 

testing

We have completed walkthrough tests of the Council's controls operating in areas 

where we consider that there is a risk of material misstatement to the financial 

statements. 

These include creditor payments, payroll and also controls surrounding journal entries 

to the general ledger.

Our work to date has not identified any issues which we wish to bring to 

your attention. Internal controls have been implemented by the Council 

in accordance with our documented understanding. 

Our work has not identified any weaknesses which impact on our audit 

approach.

Journals testing We have completed the testing of journals for any unusual items for Months 1 to 10. Our work to date has not identified any issues which we wish to bring to 

your attention.

Further work:

We will perform journal testing for the remaining two months of the year 

and also year end transaction journals.

P
age 16



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2017/18 12

Results of interim audit work (continued)

Audit Area Work performed Summary and conclusion

Early substantive testing

(Occurrence and 

Accuracy)

We have carried out early substantive testing in the following areas:

• tested a sample of expenditure transactions from months 1 to 10 to 

supporting evidence

• tested a sample of payroll transactions from months 1 to 10  to 

supporting evidence.

• Confirmed opening balances in the 2017/18 ledger

Our work to date has not identified any issues

Further work:

We will carry out further sample testing to cover the remaining two month 

period of the financial year for payroll and expenditure items.

Housing Benefit testing 

(parameters)

We have agreed the parameters in the housing benefit system to the 2017-

18 rates as notified in the DWP Circular.

Our review noted that the Council had correctly updated its parameters in 

line with the circular.

Further work:

We will perform sample testing of housing benefit payments throughout 

2017-18 to ensure payments have been appropriately calculated and 

accounted on a materially accurate basis.

Grant Income We have reviewed the grants to month ten and identified grants which we 

deem as significant for review. 

We have obtained the terms and conditions associated with the grants

Our work to date has not identified any issues

Further work:

We will review all significant grants against final grant allocation 

confirmations.

P
age 17



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2017/18 13

Audit logistics, team & audit fees

Audit team

The core audit team will be as follows:

Gareth Mills (Engagement Lead), Marianne Dixon (Engagement Manager) and Rebecca Williams (Engagement In-charge)

Audit fees

The planned audit fees are £136,373 (PY: £136,373) for the financial statements audit.

The indicative fee for grant certification is £20,065 (PY: £18,600). Our fees for grant certification cover only housing benefit subsidy certification, which falls under the remit of Public 

Sector Audit Appointments Limited. 

Fees in respect of other grant work, such as reasonable assurance reports, are shown under 'Fees for other services'. The certification fee is subject to year-end review depending on 

the level of errors detected. 

In setting your fee, we have assumed that the scope of the audit, and the Council and its activities, do not significantly change.

Our requirements

To ensure the audit is delivered on time and to avoid any additional fees, we have detailed our expectations and requirements in the following section ‘Early Close’. If the requirements 

detailed overleaf are not met, we reserve the right to postpone our audit visit and charge fees to reimburse us for any additional costs incurred.

Planning and

risk assessment 

Interim audit

February- April

2018

Year end audit

June-July 2018

(including 

weekly progress meetings

Audit & Governance

Committee

18 December 2017

Audit & Governance

Committee

23 April 2018

Audit & Governance 

Committee

30 July 2018

TBC

Target sign off 

date 

By 31 July 2018

Present 

Audit Findings 

(ISA260) Report

Audit 

opinion

Audit Plan 

(including interim 

findings)

Accounts

‘clearance’ 

meeting

25 July 2018

Agree draft 

Audit Findings 

ReportP
age 18



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2017/18 14

Early close
Our requirements 

To minimise the risk of a delayed audit or additional audit fees being incurred, you need to 

ensure that you:

• produce draft financial statements of good quality by the deadline you have agreed with 

us, including all notes, the narrative report and the Annual Governance Statement

• ensure that good quality working papers are available at the start of the audit, in 

accordance with the working paper requirements schedule that we have shared with 

you

• ensure that the agreed data reports are available to us at the start of the audit and are 

reconciled to the values in the accounts, in order to facilitate our selection of samples

• ensure that all appropriate staff are available on site throughout (or as otherwise 

agreed) the planned period of the audit

• respond promptly and adequately to audit queries.

In return, we will ensure that:

• the audit runs smoothly with the minimum disruption to your staff

• you are kept informed of progress through the use of an issues tracker and weekly 

meetings during the audit

• we are available to discuss issues with you prior to and during your preparation of the 

financial statements. 

Meeting the early close timeframe

Bringing forward the statutory date for publication of audited local government accounts to 

31 July this year, across the whole sector, is a significant challenge for local authorities and 

auditors alike. For authorities, the time available to prepare the accounts is curtailed, while, 

as auditors we have a shorter period to complete our work and face an even more 

significant peak in our workload than previously.

We have carefully planned how we can make the best use of the resources available to us 

during the final accounts period. As well as increasing the overall level of resources 

available to deliver audits, we have focused on:

• bringing forward as much work as possible to interim audits

• starting work on final accounts audits as early as possible

• seeking further efficiencies in the way we carry out our audits

• working with you to agree detailed plans to make the audits run smoothly, including 

early agreement of audit dates, working paper and data requirements and early 

discussions on potentially contentious items.

We are satisfied that, if all these plans are implemented, we will be able to complete your 

audit and those of our other local government clients in sufficient time to meet the earlier 

deadline. 

Client responsibilities

Where individual clients do not deliver to the timetable agreed, we need to ensure that this 

does not impact on audit quality or absorb a disproportionate amount of time, thereby 

disadvantaging other clients. We will therefore conduct audits in line with the timetable set 

out in audit plans (as detailed on the previous page). 

Where the elapsed time to complete an audit exceeds that agreed due to a client not 

meetings its obligations we will not be able to maintain a team on site. Similarly, where 

additional resources are needed to complete the audit due to a client not meeting their 

obligations we are not able to guarantee the delivery of the audit by the statutory deadline. 

Such audits are unlikely to be re-started until very close to, or after the statutory deadline. 

In addition, it is highly likely that these audits will incur additional audit fees.

Given the level of work both the Council and ourselves have performed in recent years in 

order to ensure the audit is well prepared for the earlier statutory deadline, we do not 

anticipate any significant issues in this area.  Indeed, the 2016-17 audit was signed off 

prior to the end of July meaning the Council is already meeting the earlier deadline 

requirement.

P
age 19



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2017/18 15

Independence & non-audit services

Auditor independence

Ethical Standards and ISA (UK) 260 require us to give you timely disclosure of all significant facts and matters that may bear upon the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm 

or covered persons. relating to our independence. We encourage you to contact us to discuss these or any other independence issues with us. We will also discuss with you if we make 

additional significant judgements surrounding independence matters.

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with the 

Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial 

statements. Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 issued in December 2016 which sets out supplementary guidance 

on ethical requirements for auditors of local public bodies. 

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the Ethical Standard. For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant 

Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Council. 

Non-audit services

The following non-audit service is identified. For the review of the Teacher’s Pension Return, we have not received confirmation that the Council requires us to undertake this work in 

2017-18. However, the service referred to below is included on the basis that we have undertaken similar assignments for the Council for a number of years. The fee quoted reflects the 

amount charged in the previous year which we would not expect to change significantly if we were to undertake the work. 

Service Fees £ Threats Safeguards

Audit related:

Agreed upon procedures 

engagement in respect of 

the Teachers’ Pension 

Return.

4,200 Self-Interest (because 

this is a recurring fee)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the 

anticipated fee for this work is £4,200 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £136,373 and in particular 

relative to Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element to it. 

These factors mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.

Non-audit related:

None. -

The amount detailed as fees agreed to-date for audit related and non-audit services to be undertaken by Grant Thornton UK LLP in the current financial year. These services are 

consistent with the Council’s policy on the allotment of non-audit work to your auditors. Any changes and full details of all fees charged for audit related and non-audit related services by 

Grant Thornton UK LLP and by Grant Thornton International Limited network member Firms will be included in our Audit Findings Report at the conclusion of the audit.

The service above is not subject to a contingent fee. 

P
age 20



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2017/18 16

Appendix A:  Revised ISAs

Detailed below is a summary of the key changes impacting the auditor’s report for audits of financial statement for periods commencing on or after 17 June 2016.

Section of the auditor's report Description of the requirements

Conclusions relating to going concern We will be required to conclude and report whether:

• The directors use of the going concern basis of accounting is appropriate 

• The directors have disclosed identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Council’s ability to continue as a 

going concern. 

Other information We will be required to include a section on other information which includes:

• Responsibilities of management and auditors regarding other information

• A statement that the opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information unless required by law or regulation

• Reporting inconsistencies or misstatements where identified

Additional responsibilities for directors 

and the auditor

We will be required to include the respective responsibilities for directors and us, as auditors, regarding going concern.

Format of the report The opinion section appears first followed by the basis of opinion section.

P
age 21



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2017/18

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member 

firms, as the context requires.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a 

separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one 

another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. 

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 22



Audit Progress Report and Sector Update

Rochdale Borough Council

Year ending 31 March 2018

23 April 2018

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 7



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | March 2018

Contents

Section Page

Introduction 03

Progress at 11 April 2018 04

Audit Deliverables 05

Results of Interim Audit Work 06

Sector Update 08

Links 18

2

P
age 24



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | March 2018

This paper provides the Audit and Governance Committee with a report on 

progress in delivering our responsibilities as your external auditors. 

The paper also includes:

• a summary of emerging national issues and developments that may be relevant to you as a local authority; and

• includes a number of challenge questions in respect of these emerging issues which the Committee may wish to 

consider (these are a tool to use, if helpful, rather than formal questions requiring responses for audit purposes)

Members of the Audit and Governance Committee can find further useful material on our website, where we have a 

section dedicated to our work in the public sector. Here you can download copies of our publications. Click on the 

Grant Thornton logo to be directed to the website www.grant-thornton.co.uk .

If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to register with Grant Thornton to 

receive regular email updates on issues that are of interest to you, please contact either your Engagement Lead or 

Engagement Manager.-successfully/

Introduction

3

Gareth Mills

Engagement Lead

T 0113 200 2535

M 07825 115921

E gareth.mills@uk.gt.com

Marianne Dixon

Engagement Manager

T 0113 200 2699

M 07880 456157

E Marianne.dixon@uk.gt.com

P
age 25

http://www.grant-thornton.co.uk/


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | March 2018

Value for Money

The scope of our work is set out in the guidance issued 

by the National Audit Office. The Code requires auditors 

to satisfy themselves that; "the Council has made proper 

arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources".

The guidance confirmed the overall criterion as: "in all 

significant respects, the audited body had proper 

arrangements to ensure it took properly informed 

decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned 

and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local 

people".

The three sub criteria for assessment to be able to give a 

conclusion overall are:

•Informed decision making

•Sustainable resource deployment

•Working with partners and other third parties

We have made our initial risk assessment to determine 

our approach and have reported this to you in our Audit 

Plan.

We will report our work in the Audit Findings Report and 

give our Value For Money Conclusion by the deadline in 

July 2018.

Progress at 11 April 2018

4

Other areas

Certification of claims and returns

We are required to certify the Council’s annual Housing 

Benefit Subsidy claim in accordance with procedures 

agreed with the Department for Work and Pensions. 

This certification work for the 2018/19 claim will be 

concluded by November 2018.

The results of the certification work will be reported to 

you in our certification letter 2017/18.

Meetings

We continue to meet senior officers regularly as part of 

our quarterly liaison meetings to discuss the Council’s 

strategic priorities and plans.

We also hold regular discussions with finance staff 

regarding emerging developments  to ensure the 

account closedown and audit process is smooth and 

effective.

Events

We provided a financial statements training workshop in 

February for key finance staff to help ensure an efficient 

accounts closure and audit process for 2017/18.

We provide a range of workshops, along with network 

events for members and publications to support the 

Council. Further details of the publications that may be 

of interest to the Council are set out in our Sector 

Update section of this report.

Financial Statements Audit

We have started planning for the 2017/18 financial 

statements audit and have issued a detailed audit 

plan, setting out our proposed approach to the audit 

of the Council's 2017/18 financial statements.

We commenced our interim audit in February 2018. 

Our interim fieldwork visit included:

• Updated review of the Council’s control 

environment

• Updated understanding of financial systems

• Review of Internal Audit reports on core financial 

systems

• Early work on emerging accounting issues

• Early substantive testing

The findings from our interim audit are summarised at 

page 6 to 7.

The statutory deadline for the issue of the 2017/18 

opinion is brought forward by two months to 31 July 

2018. 

In 2016/17 your audit opinion was delivered on 26 

July, already achieving this earlier deadline. We have 

already discussed our 2017/18 plan and timetable 

with officers.

The final accounts audit is due to begin on the 4 June 

2018  with findings reported to you in the Audit 

Findings Report before the deadline of 31 July 2018.

P
age 26



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | March 2018

Audit Deliverables

5

2017/18 Deliverables Planned Date Status

Fee Letter 

Confirming audit fee for 2017/18.

April 2017 Complete

Accounts Audit Plan

We are required to issue a detailed accounts audit plan to the Audit and Governance Committee 

setting out our proposed approach in order to give an opinion on the Council’s 2017-18 financial 

statements. This is being presented at the 23 April meeting.

April 2018 Complete

Interim Audit Findings

We will report to you the findings from our interim audit and our initial value for money risk assessment. 

We have reported these  both in this report and in the Audit Plan.

April 2018 Complete

Audit Findings Report

The Audit Findings Report will be reported to the July Audit and Governance Committee.

July 2018 Not yet due

Auditors Report

This is the opinion on your financial statement, annual governance statement and value for money 

conclusion.

July 2018 Not yet due

Annual Audit Letter

This letter communicates the key issues arising from our work.

August 2018 Not yet due

Annual Certification Letter

This letter reports any matters arising from our certification work carried out under the PSAA contract.

December 2018 Not yet due

P
age 27



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | March 2018

Results of Interim Audit Work

6

The findings of our interim audit work, and the impact of our findings on the accounts audit approach, are summarised in the table below:

Work performed Conclusions and recommendations

Internal audit We have completed a high level review of internal audit's overall 

arrangements. Our work has not identified any issues which we wish to bring 

to your attention. 

Overall, we have concluded that the internal audit service 

provides an independent and satisfactory service to the 

Council and that internal audit work contributes to an 

effective internal control environment.

Our review of internal audit work has not identified any issues 

that we wish to bring to your attention

Entity level controls We have obtained an understanding of the overall control environment 

relevant to the preparation of the financial statements including:

• Communication and enforcement of integrity and ethical values

• Commitment to competence

• Participation by those charged with governance

• Management's philosophy and operating style

• Organisational structure

• Assignment of authority and responsibility

• Human resource policies and practices

Our work has identified no material weaknesses which are 

likely to adversely impact on the Council’s financial 

statements

Review of information 

technology controls

Our information systems specialist is in the process of performing a high level 

review of the general IT control environment, as part of the overall review of 

the internal controls system. 

Our work is ongoing.

Walk through testing We have completed walkthrough tests of the Council's controls operating in 

areas where we consider that there is a risk of material misstatement to the 

financial statements. Including:

• Creditor payments

• Payroll

• Journal procedures.

Our work to date has not identified any issues which we wish 

to bring to your attention. Internal controls have been 

implemented by the Council in accordance with our 

documented understanding. 

Our work has not identified any weaknesses which impact on 

our audit approach.

Journals testing We have completed the testing of journals for any unusual items for Months 1 

to 10.

Our work to date has not identified any issues which we wish 

to bring to your attention.

Further work:

We will perform journal testing for the remaining two months 

of the year and also year end transaction journals.

P
age 28



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | March 2018 7

Work performed Conclusions and recommendations

Early substantive

testing

We have carried out early substantive testing in the following areas:

• tested a sample of expenditure transactions from months 1 to 10 to 

supporting evidence

• tested a sample of payroll transactions from months 1 to 10  to supporting 

evidence.

• Confirmed opening balances in the 2017/18 ledger

Our work to date has not identified any issues

Housing Benefit 

testing 

We have agreed the parameters in the housing benefit system to the 2017-18 

rates as notified in the DWP Circular

Our review noted that the Council had correctly updated its 

parameters in line with the circular.

Further work:

We will perform sample testing of housing benefit payments 

throughout 2017-18 to ensure payments have been appropriately 

calculated and accounted for on a materially accurate basis.

Grant Income We have reviewed the grants to month ten and identified grants which we deem 

as significant for review. 

We have obtained and confirmed the terms and conditions associated with the 

grants.

Our work to date has not identified any issues

Further work:

We will review all significant grants against final grant allocation 

confirmations.

Results of Interim Audit Work (continued)

P
age 29



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | March 2018

Local government finances are at a tipping point. 

Councils are tackling a continuing drive to 

achieve greater efficiency in the delivery of 

public services, whilst facing the challenges to 

address rising demand, ongoing budget 

pressures and social inequality.

Our sector update provides you with an up to date summary of 

emerging national issues and developments to support you. We 

cover areas which may have an impact on your organisation, the 

wider NHS and the public sector as a whole. Links are provided to 

the detailed report/briefing to allow you to delve further and find 

out more. 

Our public sector team at Grant Thornton also undertake research 

on service and technical issues. We will bring you the latest 

research publications in this update. We also include areas of 

potential interest to start conversations within the organisation and 

with audit committee members, as well as any accounting and 

regulatory updates. 

Sector Update

8

More information can be found on our dedicated public sector and local 

government sections on the Grant Thornton website

• Grant Thornton Publications

• Insights from local  government sector 

specialists

• Reports of interest

• Accounting and regulatory updates

P
age 30



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | March 2018

Financial sustainability of local authorities 2018

This National Audit Office report reviews financial 

sustainability across  Local Government and examines 

whether the MHCLG, along with other departments with 

responsibility for local services, understands the impact of 

funding reductions on the financial and service sustainability 

of local authorities.

The report concludes that current pattern of growing overspends on services and dwindling 

reserves exhibited by an increasing number of authorities is not sustainable over the medium 

term. The financial future for many authorities is less certain than in 2014, when the NAO 

last looked at financial sustainability. It also notes that the financial uncertainty created by 

delayed reform to the local government financial system risks longer-term value for money.

The NAO’s view is that the sector has done well to manage substantial funding reductions 

since 2010-11, but financial pressure has increased markedly since the 2014 review.. 

Services other than adult social care are continuing to face reducing funding despite 

anticipated increases in council tax. Local authorities face a range of new demand and cost 

pressures while their statutory obligations have not been reduced. Non-social-care budgets 

have already been reduced substantially, so many authorities have less room for manoeuvre 

in finding further savings. The scope for local discretion in service provision is also eroding 

even as local authorities strive to generate alternative income streams.

Key findings include:

• Financial resilience varies between authorities, with some having substantially lower 

reserves levels than others. Levels of total reserves in social care authorities as a whole 

are higher now than in 2010-11. However, there is variation in individual authorities’ 

ability to build up their reserves and differences in the rate at which they have begun to 

draw them down. Some 10.6% of single-tier and county councils would have the 

equivalent of less than three years’ worth of total reserves (earmarked and unallocated 

combined) left if they continued to use their reserves at the rate they did in 2016-17.

• A section 114 notice has been issued at one authority, which indicates that it is at risk of 

failing to balance its books in this financial year. In February 2018, the statutory financial 

officer for Northamptonshire County Council issued a section 114 notice, indicating that it 

was at risk of spending more in the financial year than the resources it has available, 

which would be unlawful.

• MHCLG’s work to assess the sector’s funding requirements as part of the 2015 Spending 

Review was better than the work it undertook for the 2013 Spending Review. The 

Department’s advice to ministers in 2015 drew on a more comprehensive evidence base, 

including data returns from 12 departments.

• The government has announced multiple short-term funding initiatives in recent years 

and does not have a long-term funding plan for local authorities. In 2016-17, the 

Department offered a four-year settlement to all authorities to enable better financial 

planning. However, there have been many changes to funding streams outside this core 

offer. The funding landscape following the 2015 Spending Review has been 

characterised by one-off and short-term funding initiatives. 

• There is also uncertainty over the long-term financial plan for the sector. The absolute 

scale of future funding is unknown until the completion of the next Spending Review. The 

government has confirmed its intention to implement the results of the Fair Funding 

Review in 2020-21 and to allow local authorities to retain 75% of business rates. 

However, the implications of these changes are not yet clear. 

• There is a lack of ongoing coordinated monitoring of the impact of funding reductions 

across the full range of local authority services.

9

P
age 31



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | March 2018

The adult social care workforce in England

This National Audit Office report considers the Department of 

Health & Social Care’s role in overseeing the adult social care 

workforce and assesses whether the size and structure of the 

care workforce are adequate to meet users’ needs for care 

now, and in the future, in the face of financial challenges and 

a competitive labour market.  

The Department of Health and Social Care is not doing enough to support a sustainable 

social care workforce. The number of people working in care is not meeting the country’s 

growing care demands and unmet care needs are increasing, according to the report. While 

many people working in care find it rewarding, there is widespread agreement that workers 

feel undervalued and there are limited opportunities for career progression, particularly 

compared with similar roles in health. In 2016-17, around half of care workers were paid 

£7.50 per hour or below (the National Living Wage was £7.20 in 2016-17), equivalent to 

£14,625 annually. This, along with tough working conditions and a poor image, prevents 

workers from joining and remaining in the sector.

There are around 1.34 million jobs in the adult social care sector in England, across more 

than 20,300 organisations. The turnover rate of care staff has been increasing since 2012-13 

and in 2016-17 reached 27.8%. The vacancy rate in 2016-17 for jobs across social care was 

6.6%, which was well above the national average of 2.5%-2.7% However, demographic 

trends suggest that demand for care will continue to increase and people’s cares needs will 

continue to become more complex. To meet these challenges, the Department estimates 

that the workforce will need to grow by 2.6% every year until 2035.

The social care market is operating in challenging circumstances. Care providers, already 

under financial pressures, are struggling to recruit and retain workers and are incurring 

additional costs as a result. Local authorities spent 5.3% less on care in 2016-17 compared 

with 2010-11, and spending is expected to reduce further over the next two years due to 

continued government funding cuts and increased financial pressures on local authorities.  

Uncertainty over funding is limiting local authorities’ ability to plan future spending on care.

The Department cannot demonstrate that the sector is sustainably funded, which impacts 

workforce planning. Around 65% of independent providers’ income comes from local 

authority-arranged care. The vast majority of local authorities are paying fees to homecare 

providers that are below the recommended minimum price for care, putting providers in 

financial difficulties. Furthermore, local authorities are not paying the full cost for care home 

placements. If this continues, there is a risk providers will not continue to invest in areas 

where there are high proportions of people receiving local authority funded care.

The Department has no national strategy to address this workforce challenge and key 

commitments it has made to help make the sector more attractive, through enhanced 

training and career development, have not been followed through. Furthermore, the NAO 

has not found any evidence that the Department is overseeing workforce planning by local 

authorities and local health and care partnerships, which commission care, to help with the 

challenge. Without a national strategy to align to, few local areas have detailed plans for 

sustaining the care workforce.

The NAO has recommended that the Department produces a robust national workforce 

strategy with the support of the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government 

and that it encourages local and regional bodies to align their own plans to it. The 

Department also needs to invest more to enable commissioners to set appropriate fees for 

providers, so they can pay staff adequately and afford to offer career development and 

training opportunities.

10

P
age 32

https://www.nao.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/02/The-adult-social-care-workforce-in-England.pdf


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | March 2018

Public Sector Audit Appointments: Report on the 
results of auditors’ work 2016/17

This is the third report on the results of auditors’ work at local 

government bodies published by PSAA. It summarises the 

results of auditors’ work at 497 principal bodies and 9,752 

small bodies for 2016/17. The report covers the timeliness 

and quality of financial reporting, auditors’ local value for 

money work, and the extent to which auditors used their 

statutory reporting powers.

The timeliness and quality of financial reporting for 2016/17, as reported by auditors, 

remained broadly consistent with the previous year for both principal and small bodies. 

Compared with 2015/16, the number of principal bodies that received an unqualified audit 

opinion by 31 July showed an encouraging increase. 83 principal bodies (17 per cent) 

received an unqualified opinion on their accounts by the end of July compared with 49 (10 

per cent) for 2015/16. These bodies appear to be well positioned to meet the earlier statutory 

accounts publication timetable that will apply for 2017/18 accounts.

Less positively, the proportion of principal bodies where the auditor was unable to issue the 

opinion by 30 September increased compared to 2015/16. Auditors at 92 per cent of councils 

(331 out of 357) were able to issue the opinion on the accounts by 30 September 2017, 

compared to 96 per cent for the previous year. This is a disappointing development in the 

context of the challenging new reporting timetable from 2017/18. All police bodies, 29 out of 

30 fire and rescue authorities and all other local government bodies received their audit 

opinions by 30 September 2017.

The number of qualified conclusions on value for money arrangements has remained 

relatively constant at 7 per cent (30 councils, 2 fire and rescue authorities and 1 other local 

government body) compared to 8 per cent for 2015/16. The most common reasons for 

auditors issuing non-standard conclusions on the 2016/17 accounts were:

• the impact of issues identified in the reports of statutory inspectorates;

• corporate governance issues; and

• financial sustainability.

The latest results of auditors’ work on the financial year to 31 March 2017 show a solid 

position for the majority of principal local government bodies. Generally, high standards of 

financial reporting are being maintained despite the financial and service delivery challenges 

currently facing local government.

11

P
age 33

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/reports-on-the-results-of-auditors-work/


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | March 2018

Overview of the General Data Protection 
Regulation (GDPR)

12

What is it?

The GDPR is the most significant development in data protection for 20 years. It 

introduces new rights for individuals and new obligations for public and private 

sector organisations. 

What’s next?

Many public sector organisations have already developed strategic plans to 

implement the GDPR, which require policy, operational, governance and 

technology changes to ensure compliance by 25th May 2018. 

How will this affect 

you? 

What organisations 

need to do by May 

2018  

 All organisations that process personal data will be affected by the GDPR. 

 The definition of 'personal data' has been clarified to include any data that can identify a living individual, either directly or 

indirectly. Various unique personal identifiers (including online cookies and IP addresses) will fall within the scope of personal 

data

 Local government organisations need to be able to provide evidence of completion of their GDPR work to internal and external 

stakeholders, to internal audit and to regulators. 

 New policies and procedures need to be fully signed off and operational. 

Organisation Accountability Notifications and Rights Claims and Fines

 Organisations must document their assurance 

procedures, and make them available to regulators

 Some organisations need to designate a Data 

Protection Officer, who has expert knowledge of data 

protection law

 Organisations must notify significant data 

breaches to regulators within 72 hours

 Organisations must explain to individuals what 

their rights over their personal information are and 

how it is being processed and protected

 For the most serious data breaches, privacy 

regulators can impose penalties of up to €20 

million on public sector organisations, 

 Individuals and representative organisations can 

claim compensation for infringements of data 

protection law
Questions for your organisation:

• Can your organisation erase personal data effectively?

• Have you appointed a Data Protection Officer if required to have one?

• How will your organisation ensure citizens know how their data is being used and whether it’s being shared with other 

organisations? 

P
age 34



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | March 2018

Changes to the prudential framework of capital 
finance
The Ministry of Housing Communities and Local Government 

has updated the Local Authority Investments Guidance and 

the Minimum Revenue following its publication of consultation 

responses on 2 February 2018.

A total of 213 consultation responses were received by the MHCLG by the 22 December 

2017 deadline from across local government. Following consideration of the responses the 

Government has:

• made some technical changes to the Investments Guidance and MRP Guidance

• amended proposals relating to useful economic lives of assets

• implemented the Investments Guidance for 2018-19, but allowed flexibility on when the 

additional disclosure first need to be presented to full Council

• deferred implementation of MRP Guidance to 2019-20 apart from the guidance 

“Changing methods for calculating MRP”, which applies from 1 April 2018.

Key changes are noted below.

Statutory Guidance on Local Authority Investments

Transparency and democratic accountability – the revised guidance retains the 

requirement for an Investment Strategy to be prepared at least annually and introduces 

some additional disclosures to improve transparency. However, as the changes to the 

CIPFA  Prudential Code include a new requirement for local authorities to prepare a Capital 

Strategy, the revised guidance allows the matters required to be disclosed in the Investment 

Strategy to be disclosed in the Capital Strategy.

Principle of contribution – the consultation sought views on the introduction of a new 

principle requiring local authorities to disclose the contribution that non-core investments 

make towards core functions. Authorities’ core objectives include ‘service delivery objectives 

and/or placemaking role.’ This clarification has been made to recognise the fact that local 

authorities have a key role in facilitating the long term regeneration and economic growth of 

their local areas and that they may want to hold long term investments to facilitate this.

Introduction of a concept of proportionality – the Government is concerned that some 

local authorities may become overly dependent on commercial income as a source of 

revenue for delivering statutory services. The consultation sought views on requiring local 

authorities to disclose their dependence on commercial income to deliver statutory services 

and the amount of borrowing that has been committed to generate that income. A majority of 

respondents supported the introduction of a concept of proportionality, recognising the 

importance that local authorities make decisions based on an understanding of the overall 

risk that they face.

Borrowing in advance of need – by bringing non-financial investments (held primarily or 

partially to generate a profit) within the scope of the Investments Guidance, the consultation 

proposals made it clear that borrowing to fund acquisition of non-financial assets solely to 

generate a profit is not prudential. The Investment Guidance requires local authorities who 

have borrowed in advance of need solely to generate a profit to explain why they have 

chosen to disregard statutory guidance.  It is also important to note that nothing in the 

Investment Guidance or the Prudential Code overrides statute, and local authorities will still 

need to consider whether any novel transaction is lawful by reference to legislation.

Minimum Revenue Provision Guidance

The consultation sought views on proposals to update the guidance relating to MRP to 

ensure local authorities are making prudent provision for the repayment of debt.

Meaning of a charge to the revenue account – the Government does not believe that 

crediting the revenue account is either prudent or within the spirit of the approach set out in 

the relevant Regulations. For this reason a charge to the account should not be a negative 

charge.

Impact of changing methods of calculating MRP – the Government does not expect any 

local authority to recalculate MRP charged in prior years due to the proposed changes in 

methodology. 

13

Changes to capital finance framework

Challenge question: 

Are you aware of the impact of the changes to the prudential framework 

of capital finance?

Introduction of a maximum economic life of assets – the 

consultation sought views on setting a maximum useful 

economic life of 50 years for freehold land and 40 years for 

other assets. The MRP Guidance will set a maximum life of 50 

years, but allow local authorities to exceed this where the 

related debt is PFI debt with a longer term than 50 years, or 

where a local authority has an opinion from an appropriately 

qualified person that an operational asset will deliver benefits 

for more than 50 years.

P
age 35

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/proposed-changes-to-the-prudential-framework-of-capital-finance


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | March 2018

CIPFA publications - The Prudential Code and 
Treasury Management Code

CIPFA have published an updated ‘Prudential Code for 

Capital Finance in Local Authorities’. Key developments 

include the introduction of more contextual reporting 

through the requirement to produce a capital strategy 

along with streamlined indicators. 

The framework established by the Prudential Code should support local strategic 

planning, local asset management planning and proper option appraisal. The 

objectives of the Prudential Code are to ensure, within this clear framework, that the 

capital investment plans of local authorities are affordable, prudent and sustainable.

Local authorities are required by regulation to have regard to the Prudential Code 

when carrying out their duties in England and Wales under Part 1 of the Local 

Government Act 2003, in Scotland under Part 7 of the Local Government in Scotland 

Act 2003, and in Northern Ireland under Part 1 of the Local Government Finance Act 

(Northern Ireland) 2011.

14

CIPFA Publication

Challenge question: 

Are you aware of the impact of the changes to the 

prudential code?                                                  

.

Since the Prudential Code was last updated 

in 2011, the landscape for public service 

delivery has changed significantly following 

the sustained period of reduced public 

spending and the developing localism 

agenda. It reflects the increasing diversity in 

the sector and new structures, whilst 

providing for streamlined reporting and 

indicators to encourage better understanding 

of local circumstances and improve decision 

making.

The introduction of a capital strategy allows 

individual local authorities to give greater 

weight to local circumstances and explain 

their approach to borrowing and investment.

The Code is available in hard copy and 

online.

CIPFA have also published  an updated Treasury 

Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice 

and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes. The Code provides 

a framework for effective treasury management in public 

sector organisations. 

The Code defines treasury management as follows:

The management of the organisation’s investments and cash flows, its banking, 

money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks 

associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent 

with those risks. 

It is primarily designed for the use of local authorities (including police and crime 

commissioners and fire authorities), providers of social housing, higher and further 

education institutions, and the NHS. Local authorities in England, Scotland and Wales 

are required to ‘have regard’ to the Code.

Since the last edition of the TM Code was published in 2011, the landscape for public 

service delivery has changed significantly following the sustained period of reduced 

public spending and the developing localism agenda.

There are significant treasury management portfolios within the public 

services, for example, as at 31 March 2016, UK local authorities had 

outstanding borrowing of £88bn and investments of £32bn

.The Code is available in hard copy and online.

P
age 36



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | March 2018

Commercial Healthcheck: commercial 
investments and governance

Our latest healthcheck report was launched at CIPFA’s 

Income Generation Summit in November. It is part of our ‘The 

Income Spectrum’ series, giving leaders of local government 

and public services insights into why and how local authorities 

are changing their approach to commercialisation, some of 

the related governance and risk management issues, and the 

latest innovation trends with case studies ranging from Angus 

and Luton to Oldham and Stirling. 

The research shows that councils need to do more than simply adhere to the drafted rules to 

ensure an approach to commercialisation that balances outcomes and risks. The report 

therefore also includes a healthcheck diagnostic tool designed to give local government 

leaders extra comfort and confidence that they are pursuing a suitably balanced approach

Governance of commercial commitments is key to building confidence in the path to financial 

sustainability. The CIPFA code is the sector’s primary rule book for treasury management 

and is expected to place a stronger emphasis on how councils will balance security, liquidity 

and return.

Key findings from the report include:

• While property has tended to be the focus, it is just one of a number of areas of activity. 

In the past year, borrowing includes £4.8 billion on bonds and commercial paper, and 

investment includes £7 billion in inter-authority lending (Investment in property for 

councils is a growing trend – a third of councils have done so since 2010, spending more 

than £2.4 billion between them, but this is the not the only major area of investment 

activity)

• More entrepreneurial councils are adopting innovative approaches such as place-based 

market offerings, working together locally to add social value and cross-boundary 

franchising

15

Grant Thornton Publication

Challenge question: 

Is the Council considering the risks and governance 

issues for its commercialisation agenda?

• For many councils, investing in commercial assets is key 

to developing anchor institutions that contribute to place 

– ranging from airports, business parks and forestry to 

GP surgeries and cinemas

• A ‘beyond compliance’ approach to governance of 

commercial activities is required by progressive councils 

wanting to do more with less

Click on the report cover to download and read more

P
age 37

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/the-key-headlines-from-solace/


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | March 2018

Supply Chain Insights tool helps support supply 
chain assurance in public services

Grant Thornton UK LLP has launched a new insights and 

benchmarking platform to support supply chain assurance 

and competitor intelligence in public services. 

The Supply Chain Insights service is designed for use by financial directors and procurement 

professionals in the public sector, and market leaders in private sector suppliers to the public 

sector. It provides users with a detailed picture of contract value and spend with their supply 

chain members across the public sector. The analysis also provides a robust and granular 

view on the viability, sustainability, market position and coverage of their key suppliers and 

competitors.

The platform is built on aggregated data from 96 million invoices and covers £0.5 trillion of 

spending.  The data is supplemented with financial standing data and indicators to give a 

fully rounded view. The service is supported by a dedicated team of analysts and is available 

to access directly as an on-line platform.

Phillip Woolley, Partner, Grant Thornton UK LLP, said: 

"The fall-out from the recent failure of Carillion has highlighted the urgent need for robust and 

ongoing supply chain monitoring and assurance.  Supply Chain Insights provides a clear 

picture of your suppliers’ activities across the sector, allowing you to understand risks, 

capacity and track-record.  We think it’s an indispensable resource in today’s supplier 

market." 

The tool enables you to immediately:

• access over 96 million transactions that are continually added to

• segment invoices by:

• –– organisation and category

• –– service provider

• –– date at a monthly level

• benchmark your spend against your peers

• identify:

• –– organisations buying similar services

• –– differences in pricing

• –– the leading supplier

• see how important each buyer is to a supplier

• benchmark public sector organisations’ spend on a consistent basis

• see how much public sector organisations spend with different suppliers

Supply Chain Insights forms part of the Grant Thornton Public Sector Insight Studio portfolio 

of analytics platforms.

Click on Supply Chain Insights for more information.

16

Grant Thornton

Challenge question: 

Has the Council considered how our Supply Chain Insight tool can 

help support your supply chain assurance?

P
age 38

http://supplychaininsights.grantthornton.co.uk/


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | March 2018

Cost Assurance

Our Cost Assurance service line provides Local Authorities 

with an independent and retrospective audit of their legacy 

telecommunications and utilities costs incurred during the 

past 6 years (as per the Statute of Limitation).

We find that there are repeat errors contained within a Suppliers’ invoice arrangements –

errors that aren’t necessarily picked up by the end client.  This is due to the fact that they 

tend to be contained in suppliers’ billing systems ‘at source’ and are much further down the 

supply chain which the user won’t necessarily have visibility of.

We are supported by a comprehensive library of legacy supplier pricing that has been 

collated since 2011.  Our one aim is to ensure that the client has only paid for the services 

used during the period by:

• ensuring that bills presented by Suppliers' are in line with their contracts and relevant 

pricing mechanisms

• ensuring the client receives the Supplier refunds where errors have been identified by us 

• ensuring consequential savings are identified and implemented immediately for the client

Our Cost Assurance work is based on a contingent-fee model and is supported by PSAA 

Ltd.  Each of our Local Authority engagements include a fee cap to ensure governance and 

regulatory standards are maintained.

In summary, we are able to bring much needed financial benefit to the sector as well as 

providing insight into errors that may be prone to repeat offence by suppliers long after our 

work is concluded.

Did you know….

17

Of Public Sector engagements are Local Government

55%

Error rate – rebates versus spend volume

2.84%

Rebate opportunities identified

£3.55m

Annual spend analysed

£125m

Fee income identified

£1.1m

Number of Public Sector engagements to date

40

Grant Thornton Challenge question: 

Has the Council considered the potential for an independent review of 

telecommunications and utility costs?

P
age 39



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | March 2018

Grant Thornton website links

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/industries/publicsector

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/commercial-healthcheck-in-local-authorities/

http://www.cfoinsights.co.uk/

http://supplychaininsights.grantthornton.co.uk/

PSAA website links

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/reports-on-the-results-of-auditors-work/

MHCLG website links

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/proposed-changes-to-the-prudential-framework-of-capital-finance

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/capital-finance-guidance-on-local-government-investments-second-edition

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/capital-finance-guidance-on-minimum-revenue-provision-third-edition

CIPFA website link

http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/t/the-prudential-code-for-capital-finance-in-local-authorities-2017-edition-book

National Audit Office link

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/financial-sustainability-of-local-authorities-2018/

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-adult-social-care-workforce-in-england/

18

Links

P
age 40

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/industries/publicsector
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/commercial-healthcheck-in-local-authorities/
http://www.cfoinsights.co.uk/
http://supplychaininsights.grantthornton.co.uk/
https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/reports-on-the-results-of-auditors-work/
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/proposed-changes-to-the-prudential-framework-of-capital-finance
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/capital-finance-guidance-on-local-government-investments-second-edition
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/capital-finance-guidance-on-minimum-revenue-provision-third-edition
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/t/the-prudential-code-for-capital-finance-in-local-authorities-2017-edition-book
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-adult-social-care-workforce-in-england/
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-adult-social-care-workforce-in-england/


© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, 

as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL).GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each 

member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not 

obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. This proposal is made by Grant Thornton UK LLP and is in all respects subject to the negotiation, agreement 

and signing of a specific contract/letter of engagement. The client names quoted within this proposal are disclosed on a confidential basis. All information in this proposal is released strictly 

for the purpose of this process and must not be disclosed to any other parties without express consent from Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 41



Report to Audit and Governance Committee

Date of Meeting 23rd April 2018
Portfolio Councillor Brett Leader & 

Cabinet Member for 
Corporate & Resources

Report Author Ian Corbridge
Public/Private Document Public

Internal Audit Plan 2018/19

Executive Summary

1. This report sets out the proposed Internal Audit Plan for 2018/19 which has 
been developed in accordance with the Internal Audit Charter and with close 
liaison with both the Leadership Team and Senior Management to identify and 
evaluate the key areas of risk. This will provide appropriate coverage of 
Council services in order to ensure that an independent opinion can be given 
on the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes 
at the end of the year. The Audit Plan also provides for flexibility to allow for 
new and emerging areas of risk to be evaluated during the course of the year. 
This report therefore seeks to inform Audit and Governance Committee, in the 
context of the Members being charged with the overall responsibility for 
governance, of the proposed work programme of Internal Audit to facilitate 
approval of the Internal Audit Plan for 2018/19.

Recommendation

2. The Audit and Governance Committee approve the Internal Audit Plan for 
2018/19.

Reason for Recommendation

3. This report sets out the work programme for Internal Audit for 2018/19. 
Internal Audit is defined within the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards as 
an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add 
value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation 
accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to 
evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and 
governance processes. The focus of Internal Audit work includes the financial 
systems, operational and management controls and also includes risk 
management and corporate governance as a contribution to the proper, 
economic, efficient and effective use of resources.

Page 42

Agenda Item 8



Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

The objectives of RBC Internal Audit which inform the development of the annual audit 
plan are to:
 Deliver an annual Internal Audit opinion and report that can be used by the Authority 

to inform its Annual Governance Statement;
 Independently review and appraise systems of control throughout the Council;
 Ascertain the extent of compliance with procedures, policies, regulations and 

legislation;
 Provide reassurance to management that their agreed policies are being carried out 

effectively;
 Facilitate good practice in managing risks;
 Provide proactive advice and input into any significant system or procedural 

developments;
 Recommend improvements in control, performance and productivity in achieving 

corporate objectives;
 Review and challenge the value for money processes and systems within the 

Council;
 Work in partnership with the external auditors;
 Identify fraud as a consequence of its reviews and deter crime; and
 Lead and promote the counter fraud culture within the Authority.

Audit Planning
The Authority’s Internal Audit Strategic Plan details all potential audit areas at a 
corporate level and across all service areas within RBC. Attached to each audit area is a 
risk score based on a number of risk factors which influences the frequency of audit 
review and the estimated resource requirements to cover each audit area. Specific audit 
scopes are discussed and agreed with management prior to the commencement of each 
audit to optimize the value added from each audit. The Audit Strategic Plan is reviewed 
and challenged annually in consultation with Directors and senior management to 
ensure it remains up to date, especially in these times of significant ongoing change.

4.3 The annual audit plan is determined from a number of sources:
 The Audit Strategic Plan identifying audit areas of highest risk, the date the audit 

review was last undertaken and frequency thereof;
 The corporate and service based risk registers, aligned with the corporate objectives, 

to identify areas of high strategic and operational risk;
 Discussions with members of the Leadership Team;
 Actions and developments identified in the Annual Governance Statement;
 Directors and Service Management Teams to advise on service developments and 

providing opinions on proposed audit coverage and audit scheduling;
 Issues highlighted by the Audit and Governance Committee;
 Changes and developments arising from corporate savings initiatives;
 The external auditor, advising on national developments and to avoid duplication with 

their own audit plan for the Authority;
 Issues identified from external assessments undertaken on Council services;
 External assurances required by agreed contractual or funding arrangements or 

legislative requirements; and
 Audit resource availability.

Page 43



4.4 Provision exists within the audit plan for unplanned work such as special investigations 
involving suspected fraud and irregularity and the provision of ad hoc advice. For 
2018/19 the provision for unplanned work amounts to 17.4% of the available time.

4.5 A risk based approach to individual audit reviews is now well developed. This embraces 
operational and management controls and the wider business risk, as set out within the 
Internal Audit Charter. It allows an opinion to be expressed on risk identification and 
exposure and the adequacy of systems in place to manage and control those risks. 

4.6
Internal Audit Plan 2018/19
The annual Internal Audit Plan for 2018/19 has been agreed with the Chief Finance 
Officer as s151 Officer. Agreement to individual Service Audit Plans has also been 
received from all relevant Directors through attendance at Senior Management Team 
Meetings, which form a core part of the ongoing client liaison process. A detailed 
breakdown of the Internal Audit Plan 2018/19 is included in Appendix A.

4.7 Audit coverage is prioritised and categorised between “core” work and “assurance” 
work. Core work relates to those areas, normally of higher risk, where Internal Audit 
review or support will add greatest value to the organisation. The projects within this 
category will be given the highest priority in the event of competing demands for Internal 
Audit involvement. Assurance work complements the work from the core plan and 
ensures an adequate level of Internal Audit review each year within each Service. Both 
core and assurance work form key elements of the Audit Plan to allow a formal audit 
opinion to be formed at the end of each year.

4.8 The assessment of risk for each audit within the Plan takes account of many factors 
including materiality, the risk of reputational damage, potential fraud risk, third party 
sensitivity, the extent to which the service area is governed by legislation or external 
regulation, results of previous audits or external inspections, the extent of recent change 
within processes and systems and the degree of manual intervention within processes. 
Priority within the plan will always be given to those audit areas assessed as either high 
or medium risk in this context.

4.9 The risk profile of the Authority is still dominated by the impact of the Savings 
Programme and the fundamental restructuring of Council services that is continuing to 
take place as a result of the significant reductions to funding streams being directed by 
central government and the integration of health and social care services, noting the 
establishment of a formal pooled budget arrangement for the latter with effect from 1 
April 2018. Accordingly these factors continue to influence many areas of Internal Audit 
work over the coming year. As part of this, specific focus will be directed towards the 
various transformation programmes that are progressing as well as the governance and 
commissioning challenges that arise from developing and adopting new ways of working 
and different models of delivering services. 

4.10 In view of the significant changes taking place within Services across the Council, this 
factor provided a starting point for the 2018/19 planning process more than the Audit 
Strategic Plan. The latter continues to be challenged and reviewed by Internal Audit, in 
conjunction with Service management, to ensure that it remains in line within the shape 
and structure of Council Services, functions and systems and continues to support the 
overall Internal Audit approach going forward.  

Page 44



4.11 Alongside the above, the core themes of the Audit Plan align with the significant risks 
currently faced by the Authority which include:
 Compliance with the Public Services Network which is crucial to ensure ongoing 

connectivity with key government systems;
 Other key ICT system developments which support transformational change within 

services, including the Connected Council Programme;
 The effectiveness of information governance within which ongoing challenges exist 

for the Council to remain compliant with various legislation and regulations, with 
specific reference to the General Data Protection Regulation which becomes 
effective on 25 May 2018; 

 The impact of ongoing legislative changes  and the personalisation agenda within 
Adult Care which is transforming the ways in which care is provided and funded, 
requiring a commensurate change in the systems and processes which support the 
services;

 The Council’s response and developments in processes and controls within 
Children’s Services in the light of issues previously highlighted by external bodies in 
relation to child sexual exploitation and safeguarding;

 The governance of and contractual relationships with significant external partners on 
which increasing reliance may be placed to deliver significant services either for or 
alongside Council services; 

 The commissioning and performance management of external service providers;
 Significant contracts and capital projects, such as the regeneration of Rochdale 

town centre and the ongoing Highways Management contract, and compliance with 
procurement legislation and regulations, supported by the STAR shared 
procurement service; 

 The welfare reform programme which will continue to impact on systems and 
processes in 2018/19 in order to ensure compliance with new legislation associated 
with benefits available to residents of the Borough, including Universal Credit;

 Fundamental financial systems which support all significant transaction streams 
across the Authority, including council tax, business rates, housing benefit, the local 
council tax support scheme, Controcc (adult care and residential payments system), 
payroll, treasury management, general ledger, debtors, creditors and cash control;

 The robustness of decision making and approval processes, together with the 
adequacy of segregation of duties, specifically at a  time when resources within the 
Council are reducing;

 The further development of a cohesive approach to managing the risk of fraud, 
which is enhanced at a time when the public sector is facing such significant 
economic challenges; and

 Ongoing changes within overall governance structures in order to promote 
improvements in the overall control environment.

4.12 Internal Audit will continue to take a lead role, working in conjunction with the Monitoring 
Officer, in promoting and supporting the zero-tolerance approach to fraud adopted within 
the Authority. This will include:
 Supporting the promotion of and awareness of the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy 

(AFACP), including the Whistleblowing Policy;
 Further development of a pro-active approach to fraud detection which both aligns 

with and adds to the National Fraud Initiative;
 Supporting the above approach by further developing the use of data mining 

software to highlight further potential areas of risk;

Page 45



 Monitoring and reporting on the Authority’s response to various professional and 
sector led guidance and publications on best practice in fraud prevention and 
detection such as Fighting Fraud Locally;  

 Directly supporting the Counter Fraud Team to investigate and prosecute any 
identified fraudulent activity and to ensure an effective exchange of relevant 
information with various enforcement agencies; and

 Ensuring compliance is being achieved with all key policies and there is adequate 
awareness across the Authority. 

4.13 In addition to the above, Internal Audit will continue with the responsibility for co-
ordinating the National Fraud Initiative. This will assist in providing input into future 
Internal Audit planning processes in relation to any specific issues that are highlighted 
through this exercise.

4.14
Summary of Internal Audit Coverage by Service 2018/19
Planned and unplanned Internal audit coverage by Service is summarised below:

G
ov

er
na

nc
e

In
te

gr
at

ed
 H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 C
ar

e 
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g

A
du

lt 
Se

rv
ic

es

C
hi

ld
re

ns
 - 

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

So
ci

al
 C

ar
e

C
hi

ld
re

ns
 - 

Ea
rly

 H
el

p 
an

d 
sc

ho
ol

s

Ec
on

om
y

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 W
el

lb
ei

ng

R
es

ou
rc

es

Tr
ad

ed
 S

er
vi

ce
s

0

50

100

150

200

250

300 Planned

Unplanned

Planned and Unplanned Coverage by Service

Days

4.15 The focus of individual services continues to evolve and realign as structural changes 
across the Council become embedded. With ever reducing finances and resources, the 
challenges faced within these services continue to be very demanding to ensure that 
they meet the needs of customers as well as relevant statutory obligations. As such the 
level of assurance required to confirm that controls and processes are effective has 
increased to ensure that risks are appropriately managed and overall objectives are 

Page 46



achieved.

4.16 The summary also reflects the contingency of unplanned time which allows Internal 
Audit to respond to new and emerging risks which may not be currently anticipated. As 
such, and in view of ongoing changes within Council services and activities, the Internal 
Audit Plan will be constantly reviewed during the course of the year to ensure focus is 
being directed towards the areas of highest risk.

4.17

Other Sources of Assurance
The development of the plan has taken account of other sources of assurances, both 
internal and external to Council activities which sit alongside the assurances provided by 
Internal Audit. This includes not only the process of challenge and decision making 
through the Cabinet and Committee structure, forming a core part of the Constitution, 
but also various forms of self-assessment such as the annual Director’s Governance 
Assurance Statement and the Quality Assurance Frameworks within Children’s Social 
Care and Adult Care. 

4.18 In addition, there are a number of areas of ongoing self-review with reporting through to 
senior managers’ groups and to Members as appropriate, including the following:
 Budget monitoring (revenue and capital);
 Compliance with risk management strategy;
 Review and management of major projects;
 Performance management and service delivery;
 Absence management;
 Health and safety; and
 Equality and diversity.

4.19 RBC Internal Audit work closely with Stockport BC Internal Audit and Trafford BC 
Internal Audit to audit procurement areas within the scope covered by the STAR 
Procurement hub. Any such shared audits therefore provide assurance for all 3 
authorities and any audit reports issued are shared with each Authority and reported 
through to their respective Audit Committees. The themes to be covered within the 
respective Audit Plans in 2018/19 include the following:
 Monitoring of spend;
 Vendor approval;
 STAR performance management; and
 Risk based procurement.

4.20 Further assurance is gained from other independent reviews undertaken by both 
external audit (noting that Mazars replace Grant Thornton as external auditors for RBC 
for 2018/19 onwards) and other external bodies such as Ofsted, Care Quality 
Commission, HM Customs, Food Standards Agency, Information Commissioners Office 
etc. together with independent peer reviews undertaken within Children’s Services and 
Adult Care to evaluate processes and practices against best practice standards. Internal 
Audit is also continuing to liaise with the Mersey Internal Audit Agency who provide 
internal audit services to the Clinical Commissioning Group in order to ensure that 
appropriate levels of assurance are gained as the integration of health and social care 
services develops.

Page 47



4.21

Internal Audit Performance Indicators
The following performance indicators have been set in order to provide a measure of the 
performance of the Internal Audit team during each year.

Performance Indicator Target Estimate Target

2017/18 2017/18 2018/19

Economy

1. Cost per Audit Day (£) – excluding 
overheads

259 249 260

Efficiency

2. Productive days per auditor 186 189 190

3. Percentage of audit plan completed 96 96 96

4. Percentage of draft reports issued within 
14 days of completion of the audit

98 100 98

Effectiveness

5. Percentage of recommendations 
accepted

98 100 98

6. Results of client surveys - % of marks in 
the top two categories (i.e. very good and 
good)

98 100 98

4.22 The basis for the targets that have been established is as follows:

1. Cost per Audit Day (£)
This indicator provides a measure of the cost of the Internal Audit function by 
evaluating the total controllable cost of the function (i.e. excluding overhead 
cost allocations) in relation to productive days spent directly on audit work. 
Cost per audit day will be ahead of target in 2017/18 (i.e. lower) due to 
ongoing efforts to minimize administrative and other non-productive time and 
direct as much resource towards meeting the demands being placed upon the 
Internal Audit team. It has also been positively impacted by income generated 
from traded services which has reduced overall net cost. The target for 
2018/19 is aligned with that set for 2017/18 due to the plan of further 
increasing productive days per auditor as noted below, which should at least 
compensate for the impact of increases in salary related costs.    
2. Productive days per auditor
This indicator measures the efficiency of the Internal Audit function by 
calculating the average number of days spent by each member of the team on 
audit work, thus excluding non-chargeable time. Productive days per auditor 
will be slightly ahead of target in 2017/18 with significant efforts being directed 

Page 48



towards minimizing administrative time. The target for 2018/19 is slightly 
higher than the target for 2017/18 due to the continual drive for greater 
efficiency within the team.      
3. Percentage of audit plan completed 
This measure provides assurance that an appropriate proportion of the Audit 
Plan has been completed to enable an opinion to be delivered on the overall 
control environment. The percentage of audit plan completed in 2017/18 is 
likely to achieve the target for the year.  

4. Percentage of draft reports issued within 14 days of completion of the audit
This indicator measures the efficiency of audit processes to ensure that draft 
reports are produced in a timely manner after the conclusion of the audit 
fieldwork. The target for 2017/18 will be exceeded and the target for 2018/19 
has been made at the same challenging level as 2017/18. 
5. Percentage of audit recommendations accepted
This indicator provides a measure of the acceptance of client management of 
the findings and recommendations arising from audit work completed. This 
target continues to be achieved.
6. Results of client surveys - % of marks in the top two categories (i.e. very 

good and good) 
This indicator provides a measure of how client management evaluates the 
service provided by audit staff through the client survey document that 
management is requested to complete at the conclusion of each audit. The 
target continues to be achieved as Internal Audit continues to improve 
effectiveness in this area through a focus on enhancing overall service levels 
and customer liaison.

4.23 The structure of the Internal Audit team is set out in Appendix B and remains 
unchanged from 2017/18. However it has been agreed that the arrangement 
for the part time secondment of an officer from within Resources to fulfil the 
role of an Auditor that has been in place since October 2017 will continue 
through to March 2019 in view of additional workloads arising from the health 
and social care integration programme. 

    Alternatives Considered

4.24 No alternatives have been considered given the statutory responsibilities that 
are being fulfilled through this process.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. There are no cost or budget implications arising from this report.

Risk and Policy Implications

6. The Internal Audit function discharges the statutory responsibilities delegated 
to the Chief Finance Officer through Section 151 of the Local Government Act 

Page 49



1972 and the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 to undertake an 
effective internal audit in accordance with public sector internal auditing 
standards or guidance. The Internal Audit Plan forms the basis on which an 
independent opinion on the effectiveness of risk management, control and 
governance processes can be provided at each year end for inclusion within 
the Annual Governance Statement. The main risk of not accepting the plan is 
that this opinion cannot be delivered to confirm and support the adequacy of 
the overall governance framework.

Consultation

7. An extensive process of consultation is undertaken in order to develop this 
Internal Audit Plan, as set out within paragraph 4.3, in order to ensure that all 
key areas of risk are considered. 

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. None N/A

For Further Information Contact: Ian Corbridge, Tel: 01706925452, 
ian.corbridge@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 50



Appendix 1              INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2018/19

 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

 INTEGRATED HEALTH AND CARE 
COMMISSIONING         

1

Governance Structures and Processes
Provide support and challenge to the development of 
the governance arrangements as integration of health 
and social care services evolves alongside the 
establishment of a Local Care Organisation. Evaluate 
the effectiveness of established governance 
arrangements including decision making and reporting 
structures. 

Poor governance leading to 
failure to objective key 
objectives and ineffective 
use of resources

Risk H 15  15  Core

2

Strategic Commissioning Function
Evaluate processes and controls supporting integrated 
commissioning arrangements including the role of the 
Health and Wellbeing Board and the delivery of the 
Locality Plan. Ensure the approach aligns with the 
strategy and outcomes framework.

Poor governance leading to 
failure to objective key 
objectives and ineffective 
use of resources Risk H   15  Core

3

Delivery of Outcomes
Evaluate the progress made in delivering the planned 
outcomes from the Transformation Plan and from the 
integration of health and social care, with a view to 
providing some assurance over the achievement of 
targets and a balanced budget position.

Proposed savings are not 
achieved leading to 
significant financial 
pressures Risk H    15 Core

P
age 51



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

 ADULT CARE         

4

Provider Portal Payments
Evaluate the processes and controls within the new 
payment system for providers which replaced Ezi-
tracker, ensuring the integrity of data input by the 
providers which supports future payments to them.

 Risk M  15   Core

 Controcc      

5

Ensure financial controls and reconciliation procedures 
are appropriate to support payments to providers 
focusing specifically on the process supporting and 
authorisation of requests for changes to rates or 
providers.

Payments are inappropriate 
or not correctly accounted 
for.

Risk 
(material 
system)

M 15    Core

Commissioning of Services for Service Users         

6
Evaluate the processes and controls supporting the 
commissioning of learning disability and mental health 
services to ensure consistency of approach and value 
for money based on the users assessed needs. 

Ineffective use of resources 
leading to increases in costs Risk M   15  Assurance

 Sensory Team (Visual/ Hearing Impairment)         

7

Provide assurance over the arrangements in place for 
undertaking assessments and addressing service user 
needs, ensuring that the team are fit for purpose and 
comply with statutory requirements.

Client needs are not met or 
statutory requirements are 
not complied with leading to 
increase in financial cost.

Risk M 15    Assurance

 Residential Care Payments         

8
Evaluate the controls and processes supporting the 
change in policy over payments to ensure recovery of 
"top up" payments.

Third parties may default on 
payments leading to 
financial loss

Risk M  12   Core

P
age 52



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

Governance and Statutory Oversight of Director of 
Adult Services (DAS) Functions         

9
Provide assurance on the governance arrangements 
established within the integration of health and social 
care and the development of an LCO for ensuring the 
statutory responsibilities of the DAS are being met.

Governance processes are 
inadequate leading to 
failure to meet statutory 
obligations and subsequent 
challenge Risk H    15 Core

 Data Integrity         

10 Evaluate the completeness, accuracy and timeliness of 
data stored and fed into ALLIS and Controcc systems.

Poor quality data may lead 
to financial loss, 
reputational risk or 
inappropriate decisions

Risk H  15   Assurance

Care Purchased by Integrated Discharge Teams 
(IDTs)         

11 Evaluate the effectiveness of the controls over and 
monitoring of care purchased on behalf of Rochdale by 
Acute IDTs whereby a third party commits to spend 
against RBC budgets.

Lack of compliance with 
Financial Regulations or 
Information Governance 
regulations may lead to 
financial loss Risk M    15 Assurance

P
age 53



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

 Safeguarding (Adults)         

12

Evaluate safeguarding processes in the light of a recent 
peer review to ensure they comply with relevant 
regulations and guidelines following the devolving of 
processes to individual service areas.

Vulnerable adults are not 
adequately protected 
leading to reputational 
damage and financial loss

Risk/ 
Compliance H   15  Assurance

 CHILDREN'S SERVICES - CHILDREN’S SOCIAL 
CARE         

 Special Guardianship Orders and Adoption 
Allowances (Children's)         

13

Evaluate the effectiveness of processes supporting 
allowances to ensure recent changes have been 
applied correctly.

Inappropriate allowances 
are paid leading to financial 
loss

Risk M  15   Assurance

Commissioning of external placements (Children's)        

14

Evaluate the commissioning of external placements to 
ensure decision making processes are robust and 
arrangements are fully evaluated and supported by 
contracts. Audit will include data systems, value for 
money and data security.

External costs are not 
minimised and the child's 
needs and associated 
statutory responsibilities of 
the Council are not fully 
met.

Risk/ 
Compliance H 20    Core

P
age 54



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

15

Youth Offending Service
Evaluate systems and processes to support the 
prevention of future offending

Ineffective processes 
leading to greater demand 
and cost associated with the 
service provision

Risk M    15 Assurance

 CHILDREN’S SERVICES - EARLY HELP, 
PREVENTION AND PARTNERSHIPS         

 Family Services Model         

16

Evaluate processes and controls within this new 
integrated approach to supporting children and families 
as a means of delivering the children's programme 
within the Locality Plan including the new Early Help 
and Safeguarding Hub. Ensure a consistent approach is 
adopted which meets core objectives, guidance is 
followed, and there is robust documentation to support 
decisions made.

Failure to achieve core 
strategic objectives leading 
to additional financial 
pressures. Interventions are 
not timely, appropriate or 
proportionate increasing 
vulnerability of children and 
pressures on service 
provision

 M    25 Assurance

Troubled Families         

17

Evaluate processes and controls to ensure they are 
effective and support compliance with the GM Troubled 
Family Framework and Troubled Family Outcome Plan

Lack of compliance may 
lead to funding being 
restricted Risk/ 

Compliance M    15 Assurance

P
age 55



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

 Pupil Premiums Plus         

18

Evaluate the effectiveness of governance processes 
relating to the use of pupil premiums plus for looked 
after and previously looked after children and the 
outcomes achieved. Inappropriate use of funds 

and outcomes not achieved Risk M   15  Assurance

 Funding for SEN children         

19

Evaluate the governance over the use of funding for 
special educational needs support children focusing on 
those schools with the biggest gaps in progress/ 
attainment. Include Pupil Premiums for special 
educational needs and disability children, also focusing 
on outcomes.

Inappropriate use of funds 
and outcomes not achieved Risk M 10    Assurance

 Rochdale Additional Needs Service         

20
Evaluation of efficiency and effectiveness of current 
working practices.

Ineffective management 
and control leads to 
financial pressures. Risk L  15   Assurance

P
age 56



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

Primary schools (10)         

21 Review of key controls within school financial systems.

Appropriate financial and 
operational control is not 
maintained over school 
funds.

Risk L 22 22 22 22 Assurance

 Special schools (2)         

22 Review of key controls within school financial systems.

Appropriate financial and 
operational control is not 
maintained over school 
funds. Risk L 7  7  Assurance

Secondary schools (1)       

23 Review of key controls within school financial systems.

Appropriate financial and 
operational control is not 
maintained over school 
funds. Risk L  8   Assurance

 Nursery schools (1)         

24 Review of key controls within school financial systems.

Appropriate financial and 
operational control is not 
maintained over school 
funds.

Risk L   5  Assurance

P
age 57



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

25 General advice and liaison with Schools Service
Ad hoc control issues or 
developments are not 
supported in a timely 
manner.

All L 3 3 3 3 Assurance

 PUBLIC HEALTH AND WELLBEING         

26

Link4Life Client Management
Provide input into the development of the new Link4Life 
contract to support the embedding of appropriate 
contract management processes and relevant controls.

 

Lack of appropriate 
processes and controls 
leading to failure to achieve 
corporate objectives.

Risk/ 
Compliance M 4 4 4 4 Core

27

Trading Standards
Evaluate processes and controls in relation to key 
trading standards activities including investigations, test 
purchases and premises visits.

Non-compliance with 
legislation which could lead 
to financial penalties and 
public health issues.

Risk/ 
Compliance M  15   Assurance

 NEIGHBOURHOODS         
Highways Contract Management         

28 Provide assurance regarding the governance over and 
management of the Highways Contract (Balfour Beatty) 
focusing on areas such as winter maintenance.

Corporate objectives are not 
achieved to ensure roads 
are in good condition and 
value for money achieved. Risk M 15    Assurance

P
age 58



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

 Devolution of Street Services to Townships         

29 Evaluate the governance, processes and controls over 
the use of funds supporting street services

Ineffective use of funds 
resulting in corporate 
objectives not being 
achieved

Risk M   15  Assurance

Section 106 Funding (Environmental Management)         

30 Evaluate the processes and controls supporting the 
management and delivery of Section 106 schemes to 
ensure effective and appropriate use of funds.

Ineffective use of funds 
resulting in non-compliance 
with agreements and 
agreed outcomes not being 
achieved

Risk M  15   Assurance

31

Enforcement (Environmental Action Unit)
Ensure effective controls are in place over the 
application and recovery of Fixed Penalty Notices for all 
types of offences.

Control weaknesses leading 
to loss of income Assurance L    15 Assurance

32
Greater Manchester Road Activities Permit Scheme 
(GMRAPS)
Evaluate compliance with the joint permitting regime 
applicable for road/ street works within the GM region

Lack of compliance may 
cause legal challenges to 
arise and travel disruption 
,leading to un-unnecessary 
costs and delays

Risk/ 
Compliance M  15   Assurance/ 

Compliance

P
age 59



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

Green Lane Stores
Evaluate the financial controls over the workshop/ 
transport stores operation to ensure appropriate 
authorisation of transactions, optimisation of income 
streams and timely payments are processed.

Ineffective financial controls 
leading to financial loss Risk M 15  Assurance33

      

  

 
 Integrated Place Team         

34
Evaluate the impact of this Team to determine if it is 
operating efficiently and delivering expected outcomes, 
supported by appropriate mechanisms for monitoring 
and reporting.

 Risk M  15   Assurance

 Advertising Costs         

35
Review processes and controls over advertising 
expenditure to ensure effective use of financial 
resources, compliances with guidelines and appropriate 
segregation of duties.

Lack of oversight and 
control which could result in 
ineffective use of available 
resources

Risk L 12    Assurance

Local Transport Capital Block Funding (Integrated 
Transport and Highway Maintenance) Specific Grant 
Determination 2017/18

      

36

Certification to confirm that expenditure relates to 
capital items (deadline September)

Inappropriate claims which 
may lead to funding 
clawback

Risk/ 
Compliance L

 

4  

 

Core

P
age 60



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

37

Local Highways Maintenance Capital Funding
Evaluate the evidence supporting the annual self-
assessment questionnaire which supports the claim for 
funding for the period 2015/16-2020/21 (deadline 31 
January)

Risk of funding being 
reduced on a percentage 
scale over the 6 year 
duration of the funding.

Risk/ 
Compliance L   4  Core

38
Local Growth Fund Determination (2016-17): 
31/2777
Certify conditions in grant award letter have been 
complied with (deadline July).

Inappropriate claims which 
may lead to funding 
clawback

Risk/ 
Compliance L 4    Core

39
Cycle City Ambition Grant Determination 31/2796
Certify conditions in grant award letter have been 
complied with (deadline February). Inappropriate claims which 

may lead to funding 
clawback

Risk/ 
Compliance L   2  Core 

 INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION 
TECHNOLOGY         

 Public Services Network         

40
Evaluate processes and controls in place to support the 
submission of the Annual Code of Connection in July, 
thereby ensuring connectivity with key government 
systems.

Compliance with key areas 
of legislation and regulation 
are compromised which 
may result in loss of 
connectivity with key 
government systems.

Risk/ 
Compliance H 5    Core

P
age 61



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

Connected Council Programme       

41
Ensure appropriate arrangements are in place to 
manage and control the progress of the CCP to ensure 
it is on track to deliver the expected benefits and 
support the changing needs of the Council's service 
provision. 

Failure to deliver the 
expected benefits of this 
project could lead to costs 
not being reduced in line 
with expectations and 
services not being able to 
deliver a more holistic 
service provision to 
customers.

Risk M    10 Assurance

42
ICT Strategy
Evaluate compliance with the ICT Strategy which is due 
to be updated early in 2018. 

Lack of confidentiality, 
integrity or availability of 
information or systems with 
increased risk of fraud or 
data breaches.

Risk/ 
Compliance M    12 Assurance

Information Governance/ GDPR         

43

Annual audit assurance to confirm compliance with data 
protection and data security legislation and relevant 
policies and guidelines, focusing on thematic reviews to 
confirm compliance with the General Data Protection 
Regulation (GDPR) which is effective from 25 May 
2018. 

Compliance with key areas 
of legislation and regulation 
are compromised which 
may result in financial 
penalties or loss of 
connectivity with key 
government systems.

Risk/ 
Compliance H  15 15  Core

P
age 62



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

44
GDPR Compliance in Schools
Evaluate compliance with new GDPR regulations within 
schools

Compliance with key areas 
of legislation and regulation 
are compromised which 
may result in financial 
penalties 

Risk/ 
Compliance H  10 5  Core

 ECONOMY         

 Town Centre Programme Management Board         

45

Evaluate the effectiveness of project management 
methodologies which underpin work streams feeding 
into the Town Centre Programme Management Board. 
Ensure they are supported by appropriate mechanisms 
for monitoring and reporting, leading to the delivery of 
expected outcomes. 

Failure to meet corporate 
objectives and ineffective 
use of resources

Risk M   20  Assurance

46

Flood Protection/ Management
Evaluate the processes and controls over the 
management of the flood risk across the Borough, 
recognising the input provided from a number of teams 
across different Services of the Council. Also recognise 
RBC's statutory responsibilities as a Local Lead Flood 
Authority.

Flooding occurs which leads 
to financial loss and 
interruption of Council 
service provision

Risk M  20   Assurance

P
age 63



 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk
Plan 
days
Q1

Plan 
days
Q2

Plan 
days
Q3 

Plan 
days
Q4 

Core/ 
Assurance

 RESOURCES         

Annual payroll returns and pension scheme 
certification      

47
Assurance provided to s151 officer to confirm accuracy 
and integrity of annual payroll returns and P11Ds 
(deadline May). Ensure pension data for 2017/18 is 
accurate and in accordance with the Scheme 
Regulations.

Inaccurate returns are 
submitted. Compliance M 15

   
Core

 Universal Credit         

48 Evaluate processes and controls supporting the 
implementation of this new form of benefit payment

Benefits paid are not 
appropriate leading to 
financial loss.

Assurance M   20  Core

 Council tax billing         

49 Review processes and controls supporting council tax 
billing and collection.

Council tax bills are 
inaccurate leading to 
financial loss. Non- 
compliance with regulations 
and local scheme.

Risk/ 
Compliance 

(material 
system)

M    12 Core

 Business rates         

50
Review procedures and controls supporting the billing 
and collection and business rates, ensuring appropriate 
reconciliations are in place. 

Income is not maximised 
leading to financial 
pressures. Non-compliance 
with regulation.

Risk/ 
Compliance 

(material 
system)

M   15  Core

 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk Plan Plan Plan Plan Core/ 

P
age 64



days
Q1

days
Q2

days
Q3 

days
Q4 

Assurance

51
Assessed and Supported Year in Employment Grant 
(Child Care)
Confirm the grant of £45k was used exclusively for the 
purposes set out in the agreement (deadline 30 June)

Inappropriate claims which 
may lead to funding 
clawback

Risk/ 
Compliance L 3    Core

Procurement         

52

Evaluate the effectiveness of governance and controls 
within the procurement processes across the STAR 
hub, working alongside Trafford and Stockport Internal 
Audit services, with a focus on areas such as:
 - monitoring of spend;
 - vendor approval;
 - STAR performance management; and
 - risk based procurement.

Ineffective systems resulting 
in reduced efficiency, 
additional costs and the risk 
of challenge to procurement 
decisions

Risk M  15  15 Core

 Treasury management         

53
Ensure processes and controls over the treasury 
management function are effective and in line with 
agreed standards and guidance, noting the new Code of 
Practice introduced in 2017

Significant Council bank 
balances are not secure or 
are misappropriated.

Risk 
(material 
system)

M  10    Core

Coordination and support for key policies       

54 Champion roles relating to business continuity, health 
and safety and equality.

Non-compliance with key 
policies Compliance N/A 3 3 3 3 Assurance

Cash control         

55 Ensure key controls over cash income and expenditure 
within key service areas are effective.

Loss or misappropriation of 
income. Risk L    12  Core

 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk Plan Plan Plan Plan Core/ 

P
age 65



days
Q1

days
Q2

days
Q3 

days
Q4 

Assurance

 Operating expenditure/ Creditors         

56

Evaluate the effectiveness of controls over the 
processing and recording of operating expenses. As 
part of this, follow up on anomalies identified by the 
fraud module within AP Forensics data interrogation 
software to confirm the integrity of relevant transactions 
and duplicate payments arising from invoices and 
payment requests for the same services.

Inappropriate expenditure 
leading to fraud and 
financial loss

Risk 
(material 
system)

M    15 Core

 Payroll         

57
Review processes and controls over payroll 
transactions to provide assurance over the payment of 
salaries and deductions.  

Payments to officers are not 
accurate or appropriately 
accounted for

Risk 
(material 
system)

M   15  Core

 GOVERNANCE         
Governance structure         

58
Provide assurance on the effectiveness of the 
governance structure and input and challenge on 
relevant initiatives, including attendance and support for 
Governance Board.

Ineffective decision making 
leading to strategic 
objectives not being met.

Risk M 7 7 7 7 Core

Annual Governance Statement      

59 Evaluation of the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 
to ensure it aligns with knowledge and understanding of 
structures and processes in place.

Assurance for Members Risk H  10   Core

 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk Plan 
days

Plan 
days

Plan 
days

Plan 
days

Core/ 
Assurance

P
age 66



Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 
Committee reporting         

60 Attendance, reporting, training and support for Audit and 
Governance Committee and responding to issues 
raised by Members

Members do not get 
adequate information and 
support to ensure effective 
governance.

Risk H 6 6 6 6 Core

 Directors Assurance Statement         

61

Evaluate governance processes through an 
independent validation of responses provided to the 
annual Directors Assurance Statements which feed into 
the AGS

Governance issues may not 
be highlighted leading to 
mis-representation within 
the AGS

Risk M 15    Core

 Risk and Insurance Management         

62
Support, challenge and evaluate the embedding of risk 
management both corporately and within all Service 
areas. Management of the Insurance function.

Failure to achieve 
objectives due to 
appropriate controls not 
being identified or 
implemented

Risk M 5 5 5 5 Core

 FRAUD         
Managing the risk of fraud         

63

Undertake pro-active audit testing to identify any areas 
of potential fraud and ensure the Council’s overall 
approach to fraud supports the zero-tolerance culture 
through policy development and corporate fraud 
responses. Also support provided to the Counter Fraud 
Team.

Appropriate resource is not 
directed towards minimising 
the risk of fraud occurring.

Risk M 6 6 6 6 Core

 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk Plan 
days

Plan 
days

Plan 
days

Plan 
days

Core/ 
Assurance

P
age 67



Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 
National Fraud Initiative         

64 Manage and co-ordinate the NFI including additional 
checks on data matches where appropriate.

Statutory requirements are 
not complied with. Compliance M 4 4 4 3 Core

 OTHER         
  65 Audit planning and liaison    2 2 2 10  

66 Completion of audits from 2017/18 – planned and 
unplanned    50     

 External traded services         

67
Perform audits of School Fund Accounts and grant 
certifications to generate external income for the 
Service.

   5 5 5 5  

  
68 Follow up of audit recommendations to ensure 

completed    9 9 9 9  
  

 TOTAL FOR PLANNED AUDIT WORK    292 300 274 274  

 CONTINGENCY FOR UNPLANNED WORK         

69
Audit resource set aside to respond to new and 
emerging risks and issues identified during the year 
plus management requests and ad hoc work

   30 30 30 30  

 Audit Brief Risk and Impact Audit Type Risk Plan 
days

Plan 
days

Plan 
days

Plan 
days

Core/ 
Assurance

P
age 68



Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

70
Audit resource set aside to respond to suspected 
fraud issues, whistleblowing referrals or other 
investigations that may be requested.

   30 30 30 30  

 TOTAL    352 360 334 334  

P
age 69



Appendix B                                Internal Audit Team Structure at as 1 April 2018

    

Head of Internal Audit 

 Audit Manager  Audit Manager

Auditor

(Term time 
only)

Senior 
Auditor

Senior 

Auditor AuditorAuditor

(Part time 
secondment) 

only)

P
age 70



Report to Audit and Governance Committee

Date of Meeting 23rd April 2018
Portfolio Councillor Brett Leader 

and Cabinet Member for 
Corporate & Resources

Report Author Ian Corbridge
Public/Private Document Public

Internal Audit Quarter 3 Report 2017/18

Executive Summary

1. This report summarises the work of the Internal Audit team during the third 
quarter of 2017/18. Internal Audit was able to provide either substantial or 
adequate assurance over the effectiveness of risk management in all the 
audits completed during the period. Furthermore, following a full review of 
Audit Plan status and available resource, Internal Audit has since achieved the 
targeted completion of the Audit Plan of 96% by the year end.

The Counter Fraud Team achieved £136,942 in savings during the period 
(cumulative of £305,147 for the first 9 months) together with 11 sanctions 
including 4 formal cautions and 7 fines for fraud. 

Recommendation

2. This report is for the information of the Members to confirm the level of 
assurance provided through Internal Audit work of the management of risk.

Reason for Recommendation

3. This report is to enable the Audit and Governance Committee, in accordance 
with their work programme and overall responsibility for governance, to 
scrutinise Internal Audit coverage during the third quarter of 2017/18 on all 
Services within the Council. The work of RBC Internal Audit is governed by the 
UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

Risk Based Audit Approach

10.IInternal Audit is responsible for providing an annual opinion on the internal control 
environment, risk management and governance processes for the Council as a whole, 
as set out within the Internal Audit Charter. A risk based approach is taken within 
individual audit reviews, embracing operational and management controls and the 

Page 71

Agenda Item 9



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

5

5.1

wider business risks. This allows an opinion to be expressed on risk identification and 
exposure and the adequacy of systems in place to manage those risks. 

In each Internal Audit report Internal Audit provides a clear audit assurance opinion on 
how effectively risks are being managed in the area under review. These opinions are 
as follows:

Assurance 
Opinion

Explanation

Limited A number of key risks are not managed effectively. The control 
systems in operation are in need of significant improvement.

Adequate The control systems in operation are generally sound. However, 
opportunities exist to improve the management of some risks.

Substantial There is a sound system of control in operation to manage risks 
effectively.

In terms of the Internal Audit follow up process to provide Members with the 
assurance that agreed recommendations have been implemented on a timely basis, 
any ‘red’ reports on which we can provide only limited assurance will be highlighted 
within section 6 of this report. These will be subject to specific discussion and 
challenge by Members with senior officers from the relevant Service. Thereafter, 
Internal Audit will perform a formal follow up audit within a six month period or sooner 
if the due date for completing the agreed actions is earlier and report back to the 
Audit and Governance Committee with our findings.

In terms of any ‘adequate’ or ‘substantial’ assurance opinions, all high and medium 
priority actions will be followed up by Internal Audit to confirm completion once the 
due dates have passed. Any delays in implementation will be reported to the 
Committee for further consideration. If some of the recommendations have not yet 
been actioned, Internal Audit will request reasons for the delay and confirmation of a 
revised date by which the action should be completed. The current status of the 
implementation of audit recommendations as confirmed by formal follow up audits is 
highlighted within Appendix B and any key issues will be highlighted to the Members. 
Whilst in some cases implementation has not been achieved by the originally agreed 
dates, Internal Audit has received reasonable explanations to support the delays 
incurred and will continue to monitor progress through to the revised dates proposed 
by management. The only matter to bring to the attention of Members in this regard is 
summarised in paragraph 6.2.

Draft reports are issued to management with the requirement that formal responses 
to recommendations raised are received within one month of the issue date. Internal 
Audit actively follows up with management via an escalation process to ensure that 
the reports and actions are agreed in a timely manner. At present, there are no draft 
reports where responses are still outstanding beyond the agreed period.

Planned Work Completed During Quarter Three 

Appendix A contains the details of planned audit reviews completed during quarter 
three which had an ‘adequate’ or ‘substantial’ assurance opinion. Key areas for 
improvement are summarised for each audit with a specific focus on any agreed 
actions designated as high priority.

Page 72



6

6.1

6.2

7

7.1

7.2

8

8.1

8.2

8.3

Audit Reviews with ‘Limited’ assurance opinions and Follow Up Audits

No audit reviews with a limited assurance opinion have been completed during the 
period. 
 
The current status of all follow up audits is summarised in Appendix B. With reference 
to the audit relating to the Former Boots Warehouse Demolition we note that the 
recommendations which were discussed at Audit and Governance Committee on 26 
July 2017 and 18 December 2017 have now been completed as confirmed by the 
Internal Audit follow up report e-mailed to all members of this Committee on 9 March 
2018. Within this it was noted that risk registers for projects are now being developed 
with support provided by the Risk Manager and these will be evaluated as an inherent 
part of any future internal audit work in this area.

Unplanned work

Anonymous Whistleblowing Referral
  (Director  – Neighbourhoods)

An initial review of allegations received by an anonymous letter received under the 
Council’s Whistleblowing Policy was conducted by Internal Audit. This review 
concluded that the allegations lacked credibility and could not be substantiated so no 
further work was undertaken and the review was closed. 

Outcome of External Investigation
  (Director – Neighbourhoods)

Following an investigation into the financial affairs of an external organisation which 
received funding from RBC, requested by the external organisation and supported by 
RBC management, an employee of that organisation admitted to fraud and theft and 
has recently attended Crown Court and received a 16 month prison sentence. Once 
again this demonstrates the council’s zero tolerance to fraud and will hopefully serve 
as a warning to others to mitigate the risk of similar offences occurring in the future.

Counter Fraud Team

A summary of the work completed by the Counter Fraud Team from October 2017 to 
December 2017 is set out below.

Performance

A total of 249 fraud referrals were received in the third quarter of this financial year, 
representing an increase of 49 from the same period in 2016/17.  The main sources of 
these referrals came from the National Fraud Initiative (NFI), the Partnership 
Enforcement Team, anonymous information and RBC employees. A significant 
number of these do not progress to formal investigation by the team as they are either 
passed to the DWP or closed due to apparent malicious intent or the fact that there is 
not enough information to progress the matter.

From October to December 2017 the team achieved £136,942 in additional savings 

Page 73



8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

8.10

8.11

8.12

and overpayments. To date the Team have achieved £305,147 which already 
exceeds the target for the full year. This figure derives from successful investigations 
into transactions associated with a number of Service areas including Benefits, 
Council Tax, Business Rates, Blue Badge and Adult Care, as well as additional 
income from fraud financial penalties, administrative penalties and court costs. 

83% of referrals have resulted in positive outcomes in quarter three. 

11 sanctions were achieved in quarter three, comprising 4 formal cautions and 7 fines 
for fraud which include 4 fines for investigations undertaken by the DWP in respect of 
housing benefit.

National Fraud Initiative (NFI)

The Counter Fraud Team is one of several sections within the Council that have an 
important role to play in checking data matches that are received from the NFI.  

The Team have been checking further data received in the 2016/17 NFI Single 
Person Discount, Council Tax matches. This has resulted in further single person 
discounts being cancelled, resulting in bills of over £38,000 being generated to date.  

The Team have received the NFI Housing Benefit reports. The recommended 
matches have been checked and samples of the key reports have also been checked. 
Three investigations have been opened. Two closed positively and one is under 
investigation. 

In addition, the team are still checking the Council Tax Reduction reports and 
matches. 18 investigations have been opened; 12 fraud cases are under 
investigation, 5 cases have been closed positively and 1 closed where no fraud was 
found.

Partnership Enforcement Team (PET)

The Counter Fraud Team not only investigates cases of fraud, but also provides a 
wealth of advice across the Council to services and to external bodies including 
immigration and the police.  Replies have been made to 136 Data Protection 
Requests from October to December 2017, not including the work that is completed in 
the PET. 

Referrals from different teams are brought to the PET weekly meeting each Monday 
to discuss and work on together.  A combination of intelligence, skills and powers 
from the different enforcement agencies are used to prevent and detect fraud within 
the Borough. Currently the following cross-agency teams attend the weekly meeting: 
GMP – Organised Crime Team; Divisional Tasking Team, Rochdale BC – Children’s 
Services; Community Cohesion & Equality; Community Safety; Fraud; Public 
Protection; Strategic Housing, DWP – Fraud, RBH – Enforcement, Fire Service 
officials.

The Counter Fraud Team also dealt with over 178 ‘police checks’ on Rochdale BC 
systems, to help the police trace alleged offenders and absconders.  In addition, a 
total of 12 fraud referrals have been received as a result of the PET. 

Page 74



8.13

9

9.1

9.2

10

10.1

The experienced investigators continue to participate in days of action and proactive 
visits resulting in savings being generated in respect of Council Tax, Business Rates, 
Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support.

Internal Audit Performance Measures

The table below shows actual performance as at 31 December 2017 against Internal 
Audit targets for the third quarter, including the actuals for 2017/18. 

Performance Indicator Actual 
 Q3 

2016/17

Actual 
 Year 

2016/17

Target 
Q3

2017/18

Actual 
Q3

2017/18
Economy
1. Cost per Audit Day – excluding 
overheads

£250 £242 £259 £197

Efficiency
2. Chargeable days per auditor (days) 189 194 186 194

3. Percentage of audit plan completed 
(95% for full year)

75% 96% 71% 71%

4. Percentage of draft audit reports issued 
within 14 days of completion of the audit

100% 100% 98% 100%

Effectiveness
5. Percentage of recommendations 
accepted

100% 100% 98% 100%

6. Results of client surveys - % of marks in 
the top two categories (i.e. very good & 
good)

100% 100% 98% 100%

  
All performance indicators either achieved or were ahead of target for the year 
including the percentage of audit plan completed which now aligns with target. The 
Head of Internal Audit will continue to monitor this progress made in completing the 
Audit Plan and make Members aware of any further pressures on resource as the 
year progresses.

Amendments to the Audit Plan

Further to ongoing reviews of the Audit Plan, as agreed by the Audit and Governance 
Committee on 13 March 2017, in conjunction with senior management within 
individual directorates, the following audits have now been deferred to 2018/19 or 
deleted for the reasons stated. As such this will have no detrimental impact on the 
ability to deliver an opinion on the overall control environment for 2017/18.

 Sensory Team (Visual/ Hearing Impairment) (Adult Services) – audit deferred 
to quarter 1 of 2018/19 due to staff changes creating pressures on the 

Page 75



workload of the current team;
 Special School (Children’s Services) – audit deferred to 2018/19 due to 

building work currently being progressed at the school; and
 ICT Strategy (Neighbourhoods) – the ICT Strategy is currently subject to a full 

review and a new draft is expected in April 2018. As a consequence it has 
been agreed to defer the audit until quarter 3 or 4 of 2018/19.
 

11  Traded Services Provided by Internal Audit

11.1 Internal Audit has completed audit work for a number of organisations in 
accordance with Traded Services agreements, thereby generating external 
income for the Authority. In the year to date this has included: 

 Audits of 6 School Fund Accounts for 6 different schools under Local 
Authority control.; and

 Certification of grant claims made by an Academy outside of Local 
Authority control.

12 Appointment of External Auditors - Update

12.1 With regard to the process for the appointment of external auditors for the 
audit year 2018/19 onwards, Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited 
(PSAA) has now confirmed the appointment of Mazars LLP to audit the 
accounts of RBC for five years from 2018/19 through to 2022/23. This 
appointment is made under regulation 13 of the Local Audit (Appointing 
Person) Regulations 2015, and was approved by the PSAA Board at its 
meeting on 14 December 2017. 

Costs and Budget Summary

13. Not applicable.

Risk and Policy Implications

If Internal Audit recommendations are not implemented, the Council will be 
exposed to the risks set out in the relevant detailed Internal Audit reports. 
These risks will be mitigated by completion of the actions agreed with 
management and summarised within this report. Internal Audit 
recommendations are raised as a result of weaknesses identified during 
reviews and therefore such identified issues impact upon compliance and 
governance.

14.

Consultation

15. The recommendations and actions arising from audit reviews are agreed in 
consultation with relevant senior management and officers within each 
Service area.

Page 76



Background Papers Place of Inspection

None

For Further Information Contact: Ian Corbridge, Tel: 01706925452, 
ian.corbridge@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 77



Appendix A
Planned audits completed in quarter three

Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Adult Pre-Paid Cards Adult Care has recently moved to using prepaid cards as a means of 
providing money to those clients for whom the Service manage their 
financial affairs, replacing the previous cash based system. The focus of 
the audit was to provide assurance that controls over the use of such 
cards were robust.

Internal Audit concluded that controls over the use of such cards was 
effective, thereby providing assurance over the security of client’s money. 
Only one medium priority recommendation was made which has since 
been actioned.

Substantial M – 1,
L – 1

P
age 78



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Children’s Residential 
Homes

RBC operates 3 residential homes which offer young people a place to live 
away from their families following relevant needs assessments. These 
establishments are inspected by Ofsted to ensure that they meet national 
standards of care and accommodation. The objective of this audit was to 
evaluate the systems and procedures in place over the financial 
administration arrangements at the home, ensuring compliance with 
Financial Regulations.

The audit concluded that control systems in operation are generally sound. 
However a number of actions were agreed to improve processes and 
controls in certain areas including:

 Not all VAT on purchases was being identified and reclaimed 
leading to un-necessary cost. Furthermore supporting 
documentation for VAT that had been reclaimed was not always 
readily available. This will be addressed by the provision of 
additional training from the Tax and Treasury Team from Finance 
Services;

 Staff must ensure that all travel expenses must be reclaimed 
through the payroll system and not via petty cash;

 Financial limits will be imposed on purchase cards to mitigate the 
risk of unauthorised expenditure; and

 Inventories will be introduced to record assets maintained in each 
of the homes to align with Financial Regulations.

Adequate M – 5,
L – 2 

P
age 79



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Public Health Licencing RBC is a Licensing Authority and has a number of powers and duties 
regarding the licensing and regulation of a range of business activities 
within the Borough. Premises and personal licenses are governed by the 
Licensing Act 2003 and gambling is governed by the Gambling Act 2005. 
RBC carries out enforcement activity against unlicensed premises and 
against licensees who are not compliant with licence conditions as well as 
generating income from licensing fees. 

The audit focused on processes relating to licensing applications, 
processing and collection of fees, maintenance of a license register, 
renewals and timely and appropriate enforcement activity. Internal Audit 
concluded that substantial assurance can be provided that controls and 
processes in all these areas are effective towards managing all key areas 
of risk and a timely response is given to addressing any issues referred to 
the team.

Substantial M – 1,
L – 1 

P
age 80



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Resources CHEST 
Procurement 

Portal

STAR Procurement utilises a web-based electronic tender portal – The 
Chest – to manage the 3 Council’s (Stockport, Trafford and Rochdale) 
procurements from project initiation, advertising, request for quotation and 
invitation to tender documentation, through to receiving and opening bids 
and award notification. The Chest operates independently for each council 
with distinct access and login requirements with over 40 councils in the 
north west using it. This audit was designed to provide assurance for all 3 
STAR authorities focusing on the consistent and appropriate use of the 
system, based on a sample of procurements in each authority, and also 
including the confidentiality, integrity and availability of the system.

In overall terms, Internal Audit concluded that there is satisfactory control 
over the e-tendering process within the Chest procurement portal. The 
system meets the principal objectives of providing an externally hosted 
and secure e-sourcing portal, enabling a range of procurement routes, 
advertising of procurement opportunities and providing bidders with 
relevant information with which to submit bids and receive those bids.

However a number of issues were highlighted which would improve the 
efficiency and effectiveness of the system including the following:

 Various processes and controls associated with user access;
 Developing the use of system logs to enhance audit trails;
 Confirming the back-up and recovery arrangements in place to 

avoid any significant down time occurring;
 Using the system reporting function more effectively; and
 Developing guidance to improve the consistency and 

completeness of documents stored within the system.

Adequate M – 10
L – 1 

P
age 81



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Resources Lodged Purchase 
Cards

A lodged purchase card is a form of company charge card that allows 
goods and services to be bought without utilising the traditional purchasing 
process. The purchase card number is lodged with the supplier and only a 
designated officer can use it to place an order. The cards are currently 
being used for the benefit of schools by Facilities Management in order to 
support catering for school meals. A rebate is also generated through the 
use of such cards providing additional income for RBC. The audit focused 
on evaluating the effectiveness of controls over the use of such cards.

The audit concluded that controls overall are adequate. However a number 
of actions were agreed to further enhance processes including:

 Conducting a formal post-implementation review to identify any 
lessons learned from the first year in which these cards have been 
used;

 Ensuring any cards which are no longer used by schools are 
cancelled promptly;

 Reviewing overall levels of spend on cards as an overall measure 
of control and challenge to ensure it remains appropriate;

 Ensuring all credits due back from suppliers are promptly 
recovered; and

 Ensuring verification checks are established to confirm that all 
prices charged by suppliers align with agreed contracts.

Adequate M – 5,
L – 1 

P
age 82



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Neighbourhoods Information 
Commissioner’s 

Office Data 
Protection Audit 

Action Plan

This audit focused on providing independent assurance to management 
that actions have been implemented within reasonable timescales as set 
out within the Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO) audit of data 
protection arrangements at RBC. The ICO’s report was issued on 16 
February 2017 with 27 actions agreed by the Council. The audit assurance 
provided by the ICO was “reasonable” which is a very positive outcome for 
RBC. Actions were due to be completed by 31 December 2017.

Internal Audit concluded that the majority of the recommendations were 
fully implemented. The Information Governance team are working towards 
the implementation of the 5 remaining recommendations with plans in 
place to address all of these matters in a timely manner. Some of these 
actions align with longer term projects which will ensure full compliance 
with the new General Data Protection Regulations which go live in May 
2018.

Substantial None

P
age 83



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Neighbourhoods Town Hall Cash 
Handling and 

Bookings

The audit focused on evaluating processes and controls over income and 
cash transactions at Rochdale Town Hall, recognising the many sources of 
income generated by events and activities undertaken within the building.

Whilst the audit provided adequate assurance overall, this was attributed 
largely to the main sources of income which accounted for around 98% of 
the cash generated each year. However it was noted that the booking 
system that has been in place was not very efficient or effective and a new 
system had already been purchased at the time of the audit and was due 
to be implemented by April 2018. Management fully expected that this 
would enhance overall processes significantly.

The audit did highlight significant weaknesses in the control, handling, 
reconciliation and processing of cash transactions through the front desk 
which, whilst relatively small in value, did increase the risk of loss through 
either error or misappropriation. A detailed action plan was therefore 
agreed with a view to implementation by April 2018. Internal Audit will 
follow up on this to ensure completion in a timely manner, thereby 
mitigating the risk of financial loss in the future.

Substantial H – 3,
M – 11,

L – 5 

P
age 84



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Neighbourhoods Cash Handling - 
Libraries

The audit focused on evaluating processes and controls over cash 
handling arrangements at the Central Library in Number One Riverside.

Whilst controls in general terms were considered adequate, there were 
some improvements that were agreed with management to further 
enhance processes supporting cash handling including:

 Accounting for and reconciling cash receipts on a daily basis to 
mitigate against any potential loss of cash not being promptly 
identified;

 Defining roles and responsibilities more clearly to enhance 
segregation of duties, and

 Reconciling floats on a more regular basis and ensuring any 
differences arising from the use of self-service machines in the 
library are followed up promptly.

Adequate M – 3,
 L – 2 

P
age 85



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Children’s Services 
- Schools

4 Primary 
Schools

1 Nursery

These comprised reviews of the schools exposure to risk using the Ofsted 
document “Keeping your balance”, also taking account of other service 
areas and the extent of schools’ implementation of previous 
recommendations. 
Alice Ingham RC Primary
Howard Street Nursery
Smithybridge Primary and Nursery
St. Vincent’s RC Primary
Woodland Primary

Two high priority recommendations were made to ensure that:
 Absolute clarity is obtained over the operation and financial 

arrangements of a before and after school provision to ensure that all 
relevant Financial Regulations are being complied with; and

 The Register of Governors is brought up to date to ensure all 
safeguarding practices are fully adhered to.

Numerous other actions were agreed to improve processes and controls 
including ensuring that:
 Schemes of delegation are brought up to date;
 Tenders are obtained for high value purchases to align with Contract 

Procedure Rules;
 Purchases are initiated through official orders/ requisitions to ensure 

commitments are fully accounted for;
 The employment status of workers engaged by schools are always 

determined prior to commencing work;
 Finance and Treasury Management Policies are kept up to date and 

adhered to; and
 Income should always be recorded and banked in a timely manner. 

Substantial – 
2

Adequate - 3

H – 2,
M – 33,
L – 24 

P
age 86



Appendix B
FOLLOW UP OF OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – STATUS AS AT 5 APRIL 2018

Report Assurance Service 
High and 

Medium priority 
actions 

Final Date 
for 

Completion 
Follow up 

date 
Actions 

Complete
Actions 
Still in 

Progress 
Notes on Follow Up Audit

Section 17 Payments S Children's 2 01/05/2017    Follow up in progress
Highways Contract 
Management A Neighbourhoods 15 31/07/2017    Follow up in progress

Refunds - Sundry Debt and 
Housing Benefit 
Overpayment

A Resources 3 31/08/2017 11/12/2017 2 1

One recommendation yet to 
be actioned pending 

system developments to 
address data protection 
issues associated with 

proposed new reporting 
processes.

Rochdale Development 
Agency S Economy 4 31/12/2017 27/02/2018 3 1

Remaining 
recommendation to be 
addressed at the next 

Board meeting on 24 April 
2018.

Ethical Governance A Resources 5 31/12/2017    

Follow-up deferred until 
quarter 1 of 2018/19; work 
priorities in HR meant that 

the original deadline of 
31/12/17 had to be moved 

back to 31/3/18.

Lodged Purchase Cards A Resources 5 31/01/2018    To be followed up in 
2018/19

Residential Homes A Children's 5 28/02/2018    To be followed up in 
2018/19

P
age 87



Report Assurance Service 
High and 

Medium priority 
actions 

Final Date 
for 

Completion 
Follow up 

date 
Actions 

Complete
Actions 
Still in 

Progress 
Notes on Follow Up Audit

Cyber Security A Neighbourhoods 11 31/03/2018 11/01/2018 3 8

Remaining 
recommendations due to 
be actioned by 30 April 

2018

Town Hall Cash Handling 
and Bookings A Neighbourhoods 14 01/04/2018    To be followed up in 

2018/19

CHEST Procurement Portal A Resources 10 30/06/2018    To be followed up in 
2018/19

Financial Vetting Of 
Suppliers A Resources 4 30/06/2018    To be followed up in 

2018/19

ICT Access Controls A Neighbourhoods 5 31/08/2018    To be followed up in 
2018/19

Procurement Related 
Issues N/A Neighbourhoods 13 30/09/2018    To be followed up in 

2018/19
Public Protection - Secure 
Storage A Public Health 3 30/09/2018    To be followed up in 

2018/19

P
age 88



Report to Audit and Governance Committee

Date of Meeting 23 April 2018
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

FinanceCabinet Member 
for Corporate and 
Resources

Report Author Martin Nixon
Public/Private Document Public

Risk Management Progress Report - Q3 2017/18

Executive Summary

1. This report provides a summary of Risk Management and Insurance work 
during Quarter 3 of the 2017/18 year.

The report describes action taken by the Risk Manager to support Service 
teams in the enhancement of their risk registers, and progress to develop a 
common risk management policy for Rochdale Locality Plan risk registers.

The Insurance Team update confirms performance for the quarter, including a 
total claims cost mitigation of £647,339 when comparing the highest reserves 
for closed claims against the final settlement amounts.

Recommendation

2. This report is for the information of Members to confirm the level of assurance 
provided through the management of risk and insurance services.

Reason for Recommendation

3. This report is to enable the Audit and Governance Committee, in accordance 
with their work programme and oversight of governance, to scrutinise Risk 
Management and Insurance Team coverage during the 2017/18 year for all 
Council Services.

Key Points for Consideration

4. Corporate Risk Register
The Leadership Team continue to proactively manage risks listed under the 
Corporate risk register. Risk issues are discussed by Directors regularly as an 
agenda item in Leadership Team meetings. The Corporate risk register is 
attached as Appendix 1.

Page 89

Agenda Item 10



5.

5.1

5.2

Examples of the risk reviews completed under the Corporate register in the 
quarter are provided below –
a) Control CRR4003 (Budget monitoring embedded which highlights financial 

challenges): 
Review comments: The Service’s RAG rating policy was reviewed during 
2017/18 to ensure the resources of the FSS team are focused on high risk 
areas. The service maintains a list of pressures which are identified during 
monitoring to ensure SMT’s are aware of issues and appropriate mitigating 
actions can be identified.

b) Control CRR10003 (Programme/ project management principles are 
applied consistently): 
Review comments: Project initiation documents are drafted for all agreed 
capital programme projects to ensure consistency of approach. Progress of 
spend of capital programmes is monitored through Officer Board meetings 
with Finance, with subsequent reporting and oversight of Members via 
Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny meetings.

c) Control CRR9006 (Robust and regular safeguarding and case file audits): 
Review comments: The quality assurance framework has been signed off 
and implemented. Findings from audits are being reported to operational 
team manager meetings. Findings have also resulted in an action plan of 
improvements looking at systems and compliance.

Service Risk Management

Service Risk Register Updates
All Council Services were required to review and update their risk registers in 
accordance with a new Risk Register Guidance paper distributed to risk 
champions in June 2017.

The Risk Manager held meetings with the Neighbourhood Services, Public 
Health, Customer Access and Legal, Governance and Workforce Services to 
provide guidance on improvements required to enhance their risk registers. 
The work to update these registers is incomplete therefore the Risk Manager 
will monitor progress in the next quarter. 

Integrated Care Risk Management

There has been further development regarding a joint Risk Management policy 
for the Heywood Middleton and Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group 
(CCG), the Health Provider Services and the Council. A draft Integrated Care 
Risk Management policy has been prepared by the Risk Manager, with the 
intention of establishing a common risk strategy to overcome the variances 
between the strategies currently in place at the Council and the CCG.

Discussions are in progress to consider the scoring of all risks across the 
whole of the integrated Council and CCG structure under a single 5x5 risk-
scoring matrix. It was agreed by Leadership Team in March that the use of a 
single system would avoid the potential misunderstanding that a variety of 
scoring methods applied to different risk registers would cause. The matrix 

Page 90



6

6.1

7.

7.1

7.2

selected needs to align best with the risk appetites of all of the services 
involved.
Progress on the preparation of risk registers for the Locality Plan ‘Themes’ will 
be delayed until the common Risk Management policy has been finalised. Risk 
management under the Locality Plan is already facilitated by the recording of 
risks by each individual project team. These risks are reported to the 
Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) on a monthly basis by the CCG. The 
reporting of Locality Plan risks will be included in future Audit and Governance 
Committee Risk Management reports using the agreed common policy.

Risk Management Results

The table below shows the outcomes from the Risk Management Leadership 
dashboard for Quarter 2 2017/18 and Quarter 3 2017/18. 

Leadership Dashboard –
Risk Management

Result 
 Q2 

2017/18

Result 
 Q3 

2017/18

Target
2017/18

1. Number of Corporate Register Risks 10 10 Statement 
only

2. Number of Red risks on Corporate Register 0 0 0
3. Number of Red risks on Service Registers 0 0 0
4. Number of Risks where risk score has 
increased in last Quarter

0 0 0

Following the completion of the reviews of all Service risk registers there are 
no Red-rated risks to report.

Insurance Team

Performance
A summary of the work completed by the Insurance Team from October 2017 
to December 2017 is set out below.

The Insurance Team received a total of 108 new claims notifications during 
quarter 3. This total was split - Highways (51), Motor (30), Public Liability (22) 
and Other claims (5). 

A total of 75 claims were closed by the team during quarter 3. These claims 
will largely not be the same newly notified claims referred to under point 7.2. 
The claims handling process can run over a period of months or years, and 
therefore the team are working on a combination of new and existing cases. 
This total was split – Highways (43), Motor (11), Public Liability (16) and 
Employers Liability (5).

Page 91



7.3

8

The table below provides a comparison of the final settled amounts for claims 
closed in the quarter against the highest reserve amounts for the same losses 
during the claims handling process. These statistics are a useful measure of 
the level of challenge put forward by the Insurance Team through their 
investigations, liaison with the relevant Services, or joint-efforts with solicitors 
to defend against legal proceedings.

Month Claims Closed Highest 
Reserve

Settled Cost 
Mitigation

October 31 £409,779.76 £14,370.99 £395,408.77

November 27 £217,320.54 £58,017.14 £159,303.40

December 17 £157,488.50 £64,860.98 £92.627.52

Total 75 £784,588.80 £137,249.11 £647,339.69

The table shows that the Insurance Team coordinated a total mitigation of 
£647,339 on settled claims costs during this quarter. The largest saving for an 
individual claim was £317,130 following the repudiation of a Public Liability 
claim involving a trip on a kerbstone. Following investigations by the team, and 
liaison with the Highways Service, the claim was repudiated based on a 
Section 58 defence – under the Highways Act 1980 the Council has a statutory 
defence if there is evidence to prove reasonable measures have been taken to 
identify and deal with defects. 

Priorities for the Next Quarter

1) The development of a single Risk Management Policy to apply to all risks 
across the combined Council and CCG organisation.

2) Risk Management self-assessment results to be collated and results 
reported to senior management.

3) Developing the role of the new Insurance Officer who commenced 
employment on 9 April 2018.

Costs and Budget Summary

9. Not applicable.

Risk and Policy Implications

If Risk Management recommendations are not implemented, the Council will 
be exposed to the risks set out in the relevant Risk Management reports. 
These risks will be mitigated by completion of the actions agreed with 
management and summarised within this report. 

10.

Page 92



Consultation

11. The risk controls or development action points arising from this report are 
agreed in consultation with senior management and officers within each 
Service area.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

None

For Further Information Contact: Martin Nixon, Tel: 01706925415, 
martin.nixon@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 93



Rochdale Risk Report 10 April 2018

Appendix 1 - Wider Leadership Team - Corporate Risk Register Risk 
Summary

CRR0001 - Failure to maintain or gaps within corporate governance lead to risk of litigation, fraud/ malpractice, poor decision making or judicial review, causing serious 
service and financial failure (Compliance/ Legal) - (Operational)
Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

David Wilcock David Wilcock Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 2 6

30 Oct 2018

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR1002 Code of Corporate Governance communicated, understood and followed David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR1004 Governance Board providing challenge to and co-ordination of all governance 
issues   

David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR1010 Contract procedure rules which are clear, understood and being followed David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR1011 Codes of Conduct for Members and Officers which are clear, understood and 
followed

David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR1009 Scheme of delegation which is clear, understood and being followed Elaine Newsome Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR1007 Independent assurance provided by external assessors (Ofsted, Care Quality 
Commission etc.)   

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jun 18

 *    CRR1006 Independent assurance provided by External Audit   David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR1005 Independent assurance provided by Internal Audit   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jun 18

 *    CRR1003 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jun 18

 *    CRR1001 Oversight and challenge by an effective Audit and Governance Committee Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jun 18

 *    CRR1008 Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy communicated, understood and followed Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jun 18

 *    CRR1013 Information Governance Framework which supports compliance with all data 
control requirements is embedded

John Rooney Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 06 Jul 18

 *    CRR1012 Performance Management system which promotes accountability and 
outcome monitoring is embedded

John Rooney Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Oct 18

P
age 94



CRR0002 - A catastrophic event and lack of organisational resilience leads to inability to deliver our services, to then support and protect the wider community and to rebuild 
the infrastructure (Operational) - (Operational)
Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

John Rooney Mark Widdup Active Inherent 5 4 20

Residual 4 3 12

31 Mar 2018

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR2005 Emergency plan, refeshed quarterly, communicated and understood    Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Mar 17

 *    CRR2006 Themed plans (i.e. rest centres, flooding, Turner Brothers site) for specific 
purposes   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Mar 17

 *    CRR2007 Training, briefing and exercises carried out for Silver and Forward Incident 
officers

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Mar 17

 *    CRR2008 Multi-agency resilience forum in place to debrief incidents and conduct 
exercises   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Mar 17

 *    CRR2009 Review procedures for testing of ICT system to improve processes and 
resilience

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Mar 17

 *    CRR2001 Corporate business continuity plan, refreshed and checked for accuracy 
quarterly   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Mar 17

 *    CRR2002 Service level business continuity plans, refreshed and checked for accuracy 
quarterly   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Mar 17

 *    CRR2004 Periodic corporate business continuity plan dry run exercises   Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Mar 17

 *    CRR2003 Periodic training and briefing to service business continuity leads undertaken   Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Mar 17

 *    CRR2010 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 18

CRR0003 - Budget reductions required do not leave enough budget to deliver statutory services and to achieve balanced budget in 2016/17 and 2017/18 leading to a failure 
in legal duty (Strategic) - (Operational)
Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Victoria Bradshaw Victoria Bradshaw Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 3 9

01 Oct 2018

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR3005 Corporate Plan established which provides strategic direction for services   Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 18

 *    CRR3010 External audit financial resilience assessment   Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Sep 18

 *    CRR3001 Medium Term Financial Strategy updated bi-annually and approved by 
Cabinet and Council   

Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR3002 Regular reports to Wider Leadership, Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny, 
Council on budget position locally and nationally

Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR3004 Treasury Management Policy embedded and adhered to Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR3007 s151 Officer Report presented to Council annually prior to budget setting   Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

P
age 95



 *    CRR3009 Corporate approach to addressing budget challenges (offices and Members 
working together)   

Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR3008 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 29 Jun 18

 *    CRR3003 Budget monitoring embedded which pro-actively highlights financial 
challenges   

Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR3006 Organisational Development Strategy in place which aligns strategy, people 
and processes   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 24 Jun 15 01 May 18

CRR0004  - Ineffective financial management and resilience leads to the Council significantly overspending the annual budget (Strategic) - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Victoria Bradshaw Victoria Bradshaw Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 2 6

01 Oct 2018

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR4006 Organisational Development Strategy in place which aligns strategy, people 
and processes   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 May 18

 *    CRR4005 Corporate Plan established which provides strategic direction for services   Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 18

 *    CRR4010 External audit financial resilience assessment   Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Sep 18

 *    CRR4001 Medium Term Financial Strategy updated bi-annually and approved by 
Cabinet and Council   

Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR4002 Regular reports to Wider Leadership, Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny, 
Council on budget position locally and nationally

Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR4004 Treasury Management Policy embedded and adhered to Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR4007 s151 Officer Report presented to Council annually prior to budget setting   Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR4009 Corporate approach to addressing budget challenges (officers and Members 
working together)   

Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR4008 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 29 Jun 18

 *    CRR4003 Budget monitoring embedded which pro-actively highlights financial 
challenges   

Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

P
age 96



CRR0005 - Failure of, or lack of compliance with, health and safety systems leads to harm to an individual and a corporate manslaughter/ homicide conviction (Compliance/ 
Legal) - (Operational)
Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Sheila Downey Sheila Downey Active Inherent 4 3 12

Residual 4 2 8

30 Jun 2018

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR5006 Member training regularly updated, fully attended and understood   Elaine Newsome Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 May 18

 *    CRR5002 Learning and development provided to whole workforce, primarily through e-
learning   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 May 18

 *    CRR5003 Comprehensive health and well-being policies in place and adhered to   Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 May 18

 *    CRR5001 Corporate Health and Safety Policy is clear, understood and being followed   Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 May 18

 *    CRR5004 In house team of Health and Safety Advisers who link into the Central Health 
and Safety Committee   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 May 18

 *    CRR5005 Liaison with Health and Safety Executive to ensure risk and issues highlighted 
and addressed   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 May 18

 *    CRR5007 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 29 Jun 18

CRR0006 - Risk that Council and Devolution  Manchester priorities are not fully aligned - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Steve Rumbelow Steve Rumbelow Active Inherent 4 3 12

Residual 4 2 8

30 Jun 2018

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR6001 Chief Executive is a member of AGMA WLT (Meeting of GM Chief Executives)   Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 30 Jun 18

 *    CRR6002 Leader is a member of formally constituted GM Combined Authority with other 
Council Leaders and Interim Mayor   

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 30 Jun 18

 *    CRR6003 Elected members from Rochdale BC sit on Scrutiny Panel   Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 30 Jun 18

 *    CRR6004 Officer representation on working groups dealing with CA/AGMA/Devolution 
issues as appropriate   

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 30 Jun 18

P
age 97



CRR0007 - Risk of a breakdown in community stability (Operational)                   - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

John Rooney Mark Widdup Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 4 3 12

31 Mar 2018

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR7001 Community and Cohesion Strategy communicated and embedded   Mark Dalzell Control - Being 
Developed

23 Jun 15 30 Apr 17

 *    CRR7002 Community Cohesion Pledge signed by elected Members and Community 
Representatives   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 17

 *    CRR7003 Extensive partnerships developed and maintained enabling networking and 
intelligence sharing eg. Active citizens and multi-faith forums.

Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Dec 18

 *    CRR7004  Joint working with GM authorities to monitor and mitigate risks    Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Dec 18

 *    CRR7007 Cohesion Hub and Consequence Management process in place Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Dec 18

 *    CRR7008 Weekly tension monitoring and trigger plans in place Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Dec 18

 *    CRR7009 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 29 Jun 18

CRR0008 - Risk of serious harm to or death of a child due to the act or omission by Council employees (Compliance/ Legal)           - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Gail Hopper Gail Hopper Active Inherent 5 4 20

Residual 5 3 15

30 Apr 2017

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR8001 Local Safeguarding Children Board in place which provides robust challenge   Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 17

 *    CRR8003 Regional Support and Challenge including Peer Reviews Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 17

 *    CRR8004 Performance/ Quality Assurance Framework is fully embedded   Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 17

 *    CRR8005 Ongoing and robust management of external/ commissioned service providers Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 17

 *    CRR8006 Effective management oversight and supervision of staff   Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 17

 *    CRR8009 Critical Incident Reporting Framework in place and embedded Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 17

 *    CRR8010 Workforce Development Strategy - training and support provided to staff Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 17

 *    CRR8011 LA provides advice/ monitoring and training on safe practice in schools Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 17

 *    CRR8002 Independent Ofsted inspections   Sandra Bowness Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Sept 18

 *    CRR8012 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Mar 18

 *    CRR8007 Early Help Strategy is refreshed and re-launched   Sandra Bowness Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Mar 19

P
age 98



CRR0009 - Risk of serious harm to or death of a vulnerable adult due to the act or omission by Council employees (Compliance Legal)  - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Sally McIvor Sally McIvor Active Inherent 5 4 20

Residual 5 3 15

01 Jun 2018

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR9002 Independent reviews by the Care Quality Commission (CQC)   Dianne David Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 18 Sept  18

 *    CRR9003 Quality assurance checks   Dianne David Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 18 Sept 18

 *    CRR9007 Robust quality assurance/ contract management procedures Dianne David Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 18 Sept 18

 *    CRR9010 Ongoing sharing of intelligence information with CQC and other partners Dianne David Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 18 Sept 18

 *    CRR9001 Adult Safeguarding Board in place which provides robust challenge   Sally McIvor Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jun 18

 *    CRR9008 Regional support and peer challenge    Sally McIvor Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jun 18

 *    CRR9004 PDRs, one-to-ones and supervision of staff, self assessment of practice 
standards applied across the service   

Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 18 Sept 18

 *    CRR9005 Embed adult social care safeguarding policy to ensure worker expectations 
regarding safeguarding practice are clearly defined and communicated  

Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 18 Sept 18

 *    CRR9006 Robust and regular safeguarding and case file audits   Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 18 Sept 18

 *    CRR9009 Recruitment and retention plan for qualified social workers Sally McIvor Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 15 Sept 18

 *    CRR9011 Training strategy in place for the Service Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 18 Sept 18

 *    CRR9012 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 29 Jun 18

CRR0010 -  Failure to take opportunities for growth leading to a lack of investment in the Borough and lower levels of regeneration and prosperity       - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

John Searle John Searle Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 3 9

01 Oct 2018

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR10004 Asset Management Plan is established, monitored and regularly updated   Peter Gregory Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 17

 *    CRR10001 Medium Term Financial Plan is comprehensive and regularly updated   Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR10002 Oversight and challenge of major projects and decisions by Corporate 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee   

Mark Robinson Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jan 19

 *    CRR10003 Programme/ project management principles are applied consistently   Mark Robinson Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jan 19

 *    CRR10005 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 29 Jun 18

P
age 99



 *    CRR10006 Maximise opportunities for good news   Susan Ayres Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

 *    CRR10007 Early warning protocol agreed for identifying potential bad news Susan Ayres Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 18

P
age 100



Report to Audit and Governance Committee

Date of Meeting 23rd April 2018
Portfolio Leader of the Council and 

Cabinet Member for 
Corporate & Resources

Report Author Michael Garraway
Public/Private Document Public

Review of Local Government Ethical Standards: Stakeholder 
Consultation

Executive Summary

1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

The Committee on Standards in Public Life is undertaking a review of local 
government ethical standards (attached at Appendix 1). 

The Committee on Standards in Public Life advises the Prime Minister on 
ethical standards across the whole of public life in England and monitors and 
reports on issues relating to the standards of conduct of all public office 
holders.

As part of this review, the Committee on Standards in Public Life is holding a 
public stakeholder consultation. The consultation is open from 12.00
Monday 29th January 2018 and closes 17.00 on Friday 18 May 2018.

The review requires that submissions include any factual information that can 
be offered in order for the Committee to draw conclusions and any 
recommendations for action which responders would like the Committee to 
consider.

Recommendation

2.

2.1

Consider this report and express a view as to whether the Council should take 
part in the consultation.

If the Committee is of the view that the Council should respond to the
Consultation, to delegate to the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the 
Chair of the Audit & Governance Committee, the drafting of a response that 
takes into account any comments made by the Committee.

Reason for Recommendation

3. The Audit & Governance Committee has a role to promote and maintain high 
standards of conduct by elected Members, to provide advice to the Council 

Page 101

Agenda Item 11



with regard to the Codes of Conduct for Members, Co- Opted Members and 
Officers; and to support the Monitoring Officer in the exercise of that Officer’s 
ethical standards functions. It is therefore appropriate for the Committee to be 
given opportunity to consider and comment on the current Committee on 
Standards in Public Life consultation.

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

The Localism Act 2011 fundamentally changed the local authority Standards 
regime in England.

Robust standards arrangements are needed to safeguard local democracy, 
maintain high standards of conduct, and to protect ethical practice in local 
government.

The review considers all levels of local government in England, including town 
and parish councils, principal authorities, combined authorities (including 
Metro Mayors) and the Greater London Authority (including the Mayor of 
London).

The terms of reference for the review are to:
 examine the structures, processes and practices in local government in 

England for:
o maintaining codes of conduct for local councillors
o investigating alleged breaches fairly and with due process
o enforcing codes and imposing sanctions for misconduct
o declaring interests and managing conflicts of interest
o whistleblowing

 assess whether the existing structures, processes and practices are 
conducive to high standards of conduct in local government 

 make any recommendations for how they can be improved
 note any evidence of intimidation of councillors, and make 

recommendations for any measures that could be put in place to 
prevent and address such intimidation.

Consultation questions are listed in the appended consultation document. 
Members of this Committee are invited to comment on the issues raised in the 
consultation document, and agree a delegation to enable submission of a 
response in the required timescale.

Alternatives Considered

None, the consideration of this matter falls within the remit of this Committee.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. There are no budgetary implications associated with this report as it deals with
a response to a consultation exercise only.

Page 102



Risk and Policy Implications

There are no direct risk and policy implications associated with this report as 
it deals with a response to a consultation exercise only.

6.

Consultation

7. The Independent Persons have received the report prior to consideration by 
the Audit & Governance Committee. No further consultation has been 
undertaken within Rochdale BC.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. None N/A

For Further Information Contact: Michael Garraway, Tel: 01706 924716, 
michael.garraway@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 103



Review of Local Government Ethical Standards: Stakeholder Consultation

The Committee on Standards in Public Life is undertaking a review of local government 
ethical standards.

Robust standards arrangements are needed to safeguard local democracy, maintain high 
standards of conduct, and to protect ethical practice in local government.

As part of this review, the Committee is holding a public stakeholder consultation. The 
consultation is open from 12:00 on Monday 29 January 2018 and closes at 17:00 on Friday 
18 May 2018.

Terms of reference

The terms of reference for the review are to:

1. Examine the structures, processes and practices in local government in England for:
a. Maintaining codes of conduct for local councillors;
b. Investigating alleged breaches fairly and with due process;
c. Enforcing codes and imposing sanctions for misconduct;
d. Declaring interests and managing conflicts of interest; and
e. Whistleblowing.

2. Assess whether the existing structures, processes and practices are conducive to 
high standards of conduct in local government;

3. Make any recommendations for how they can be improved; and
4. Note any evidence of intimidation of councillors, and make recommendations for any 

measures that could be put in place to prevent and address such intimidation.

The review will consider all levels of local government in England, including town and parish 
councils, principal authorities, combined authorities (including Metro Mayors) and the 
Greater London Authority (including the Mayor of London).

Local government ethical standards are a devolved issue. The Committee’s remit does not 
enable it to consider ethical standards issues in devolved nations in the UK except with the 
agreement of the relevant devolved administrations. However, we welcome any evidence 
relating to local government ethical standards in the devolved nations of the UK, particularly 
examples of best practice, for comparative purposes.

Submissions will be published online alongside our final report, with any contact information 
(for example, email addresses) removed.

The Committee will publish anonymised submissions (where the name of the respondent 
and any references to named individuals or local authorities are removed) where a 
respondent makes a reasonable request to do so. 

Consultation questions

The Committee invites responses to the following consultation questions.

Page 104



Please note that not all questions will be relevant to all respondents and that submissions do 
not need to respond to every question. Respondents may wish to give evidence about only 
one local authority, several local authorities, or local government in England as a whole.  
Please do let us know whether your evidence is specific to one particular authority or is a 
more general comment on local government in England.

Whilst we understand submissions may be grounded in personal experience, please note 
that the review is not an opportunity to have specific grievances considered.

a. Are the existing structures, processes and practices in place working to ensure high 
standards of conduct by local councillors? If not, please say why.

b. What, if any, are the most significant gaps in the current ethical standards regime for 
local government?

Codes of conduct

c. Are local authority adopted codes of conduct for councillors clear and easily 
understood? Do the codes cover an appropriate range of behaviours? What 
examples of good practice, including induction processes, exist?

d. A local authority has a statutory duty to ensure that its adopted code of conduct for 
councillors is consistent with the Seven Principles of Public Life and that it includes 
appropriate provision (as decided by the local authority) for registering and declaring 
councillors’ interests. Are these requirements appropriate as they stand? If not, 
please say why.

Investigations and decisions on allegations

e. Are allegations of councillor misconduct investigated and decided fairly and with due 
process?

i. What processes do local authorities have in place for investigating and 
deciding upon allegations? Do these processes meet requirements for due 
process? Should any additional safeguards be put in place to ensure due 
process?

ii. Is the current requirement that the views of an Independent Person must be 
sought and taken into account before deciding on an allegation sufficient to 
ensure the objectivity and fairness of the decision process? Should this 
requirement be strengthened? If so, how?

iii. Monitoring Officers are often involved in the process of investigating and 
deciding upon code breaches. Could Monitoring Officers be subject to 
conflicts of interest or undue pressure when doing so? How could Monitoring 
Officers be protected from this risk?

Sanctions

f. Are existing sanctions for councillor misconduct sufficient?

Page 105



i. What sanctions do local authorities use when councillors are found to have 
breached the code of conduct? Are these sanctions sufficient to deter 
breaches and, where relevant, to enforce compliance?

ii. Should local authorities be given the ability to use additional sanctions? If 
so, what should these be?

Declaring interests and conflicts of interest

g. Are existing arrangements to declare councillors’ interests and manage conflicts of 
interest satisfactory? If not please say why.

i. A local councillor is under a legal duty to register any pecuniary interests (or 
those of their spouse or partner), and cannot participate in discussion or 
votes that engage a disclosable pecuniary interest, nor take any further 
steps in relation to that matter, although local authorities can grant 
dispensations under certain circumstances. Are these statutory duties 
appropriate as they stand?

ii. What arrangements do local authorities have in place to declare councillors’ 
interests, and manage conflicts of interest that go beyond the statutory 
requirements? Are these satisfactory? If not, please say why.

Whistleblowing

h. What arrangements are in place for whistleblowing, by the public, councillors, and 
officials? Are these satisfactory?

Improving standards

i. What steps could local authorities take to improve local government ethical standards?
j. What steps could central government take to improve local government ethical 

standards?

Intimidation of local councillors

k. What is the nature, scale, and extent of intimidation towards local councillors?
i. What measures could be put in place to prevent and address this 

intimidation?

Who can respond?

Anyone with an interest may make a submission. The Committee welcomes submissions 
from members of the public. 

However, the consultation is aimed particularly at the following stakeholders, both 
individually and corporately:

● Local authorities and standards committees;
● Local authority members (for example, Parish Councillors, District Councillors);
● Local authority officials (for example, Monitoring Officers);

Page 106



● Independent Persons appointed under section 28(7) of the Localism Act 2011;
● Think tanks with an interest or expertise in local government;
● Academics with interest or expertise in local government; and
● Representative bodies or groups related to local government.

How to make a submission

Submissions can be sent either in electronic format or in hard copy.

Submissions must:
● State clearly who the submission is from, i.e. whether from yourself or sent on behalf 

of an organisation;
● Include a brief introduction about yourself/your organisation and your reason for 

submitting evidence;
● Be in doc, docx, rtf, txt, ooxml or odt format, not PDF;
● Be concise – we recommend no more than 2,000 words in length; and
● Contain a contact email address if you are submitting by email.

 
Submissions should:

● Have numbered paragraphs; and
● Comprise a single document. If there are any annexes or appendices, these should 

be included in the same document.
 
It would be helpful if your submission included any factual information you have to offer from 
which the Committee might be able to draw conclusions, and any recommendations for 
action which you would like the Committee to consider.
 
The Committee may choose not to accept a submission as evidence, or not to publish a 
submission even if it is accepted as evidence. This may occur where a submission is very 
long or contains material which is inappropriate.
 
Submissions sent to the Committee after the deadline of 17:00 on Friday 18 May 2018 may 
not be considered.
 
Submissions can be sent:
1. Via email to: public@public-standards.gov.uk
2. Via post to:

Review of Local Government Ethical Standards
Committee on Standards in Public Life
GC:07
1 Horse Guards Road
London
SW1A 2HQ

 
If you have any questions, please contact the Committee’s Secretariat by email 
(public@public-standards.gov.uk) or phone (0207 271 2948).

Page 107


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6 External Audit Plan - Year Ending 31 March 2018
	7 Audit Progress Report and Sector Update - Year Ending 31 March 2018
	8 Internal Audit Plan 2018/19
	Append. 1 for Internal Audit Plan 2018/19
	Append. 2 for Internal Audit Plan 2018/19

	9 Internal Audit Quarter 3 Report 2017/18
	10 Risk Management Progress Report - Q3 2017/18
	Append. 1 for Risk Management Progress Report - Q3 2017/18

	11 Review of Local Government Ethical Standards: Stakeholder Consultation
	Append. 1 for Review of Local Government Ethical Standards: Stakeholder Consultation


